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Corporate Profile &£ BN

CARRY WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED
manufactures apparel products for internationally
renowned brand names. The Group’s production
facilities are located in Mainland China.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Carry Wealth Holdings
Limited has been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 2000.

The Chinese name of the Company means “enduring
prosperity”. The Group is committed to maximizing
the return of its shareholders for their ongoing
support.
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Executive Directors

Mr Li Haifeng (Chairman)

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Mr Xiao Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Chen Zhongfa

Mr Yau Wing Yiu

Mr Zhang Feng

Audit Committee

Mr Yau Wing Yiu (Committee Chairman)
Mr Chen Zhongfa
Mr Zhang Feng

Remuneration Committee

Mr Chen Zhongfa (Committee Chairman)
Mr Yau Wing Yiu

Mr Zhang Feng

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Nomination Committee

Mr Li Haifeng (Committee Chairman)
Mr Chen Zhongfa

Mr Yan Wing Yiu

Mr Zhang Feng

Company Secretary
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

CITIC Bank International Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke HM 08, Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Agent in Hong Kong

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 25, Three Pacific Place
1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

2701, 27th Floor

One Kowloon

1 Wang Yuen Street
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2310 8180
Fax : (852) 2310 8797
Website

www.carrywealth.com
E-mail Address
info@carrywealth.com

Stock Code
643
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Information for Shareholders % 3 78 £l

Results Announcement Date
Interim results

29 August 2011 (Monday)

Annual results
26 March 2012 (Monday)

Financial Calendar

Deadline for lodging share transfer documents for
entitlement to attend and vote at Annual General
Meeting

17 May 2012 (Thursday) at 4:00 p.m.

Closure of register of members
18 May 2012 (Friday) to 22 May 2012 (Tuesday)

Annual General Meeting

22 May 2012 (Tuesday) at 10:00 a.m.

Shareholder Enquiries

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer of
shares, change of address, loss of share certificates, should
be addressed to the Branch Share Registrar and Transfer
Agent in Hong Kong, contact details of which are set out as
follows:

Tricor Abacus Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,

28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2890 9350

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited {EEZERERAE

KRLoHAEM
HRIEE
—E-——F A \AZ+NB(EH—-)

PERE
—E-——F=A-+XB(EH)

MBAE

HHERLERREFAECERE LR
FEXKRGBFEXMHZRA

—E——_FRA++H(EHM)
™5 PO R IE

TrRGBEFET

—E——FHAA+NB(EHPR)Z
—E-—FRAA-+=-H(EHD)

BRRAFAE

—E-——HERA-+=-RB(EHD)
EFFTEIE

BRRER

mETRAER BIEERHZETE B8
EIRMBPE Bk BARELS &)
B BEBRMNBEERLDE  BEER
wmr:

BERAEHERADA
BERBBFRNER28
¢ $E (& H 02612

T 5 (852) 2980 1333
{8 H: (852) 2890 9350



Financial Highlights Bf #& =

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A M BiHE

Results
L4
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=+t-HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-—-F CZT-TF ZTTNF ZIZTTN\F ZTTtHE
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET FET FTET TEL
Revenues g 601,843 734,931 733,046 880,114 1,056,861
(Loss)/profit attributable AR Al #E %
to equity holders of the ~ #H A/
Company (B1]),/%Fl (47,401) (48,829) (952) (41,666) 48,536

Assets and liabilities
HERAR
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-—-% —Z-TF CZTTNF ZTTNEFE ZZTTLtHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000

TET THET AT TAET THET
Total assets BEE 328,610 546,949 520,469 588,686 614,340
Total liabilities Bef (84,786) (305,211) (234,408) (320,624) (272,406)
Total equity B 243,824 241,738 286,061 268,062 341,934

2011 £E R  Annual Report 2011 5



Financial Highlights 81 #5182

TURNOVER
BXE

|

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

594

735

733

879

1,055

HK$million 0o
BEBT

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
EFE

|

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

800 1,000

13.0%

13.4%

18.8%

19.6%

22.7%

% o

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

BEZERERAA

1,200



Financial Highlights 87 75 i =

2011 2010 Changes
—E——-f% C—ZT-%F ZIRE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FHET
Operating results REEE
Revenues W & 601,843 734,931 -18.1%
Gross profit EA 78,531 98,171 -20.0%
Loss attributable to equity holders of AR F#EZEFH A
the Company fE1h 1R (47,401) (48,829) -2.9%
Financial position at year end REXZBBERR
Properties, plant and equipment EN T 123,524 140,558 -12.1%
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEE 111,748 74,554 49.9%
Net current assets MBEEFE 120,440 48,951 146.0%
Total assets mEE 328,610 546,949 -39.9%
Bank borrowings RITER 35,154 144,564 -75.7%
Total liabilities mafd 84,786 305,211 -72.2%
Capital and reserves attributable to ARRERFEA
the Company’s equity holders Bl BERRFHE 243,657 236,061 3.2%
Per share information BRER
Basic and diluted loss per share BREAREEEE
(Hong Kong cents) (&AL) (11.74) (13.13) -10.6%
Capital and reserves attributable to BRAARAEEFBEA
the Company’s equity holders per fE1h 2 B R
share (Hong Kong cents) (7&Al) 54.6 63.5 -14.0%
Ratio analysis tb 2 2 47
Profitability BRIKF
Gross profit margin ER= 13.0% 13.4% -0.4%
Net profit margin fA= -7.9% -6.6% -1.3%
Return on the Company’s equity ARAEEFBEA
holders A -19.5% -20.7% 1.2%
Liquidity REMR
Current ratio B & 2.7 1.2 125%
Gearing ratio EXRBEBHE -31.4% 29.7% -61.1%
Operating efficiency ReENH
Inventory turnover period (days) FER#E (BE) 44 61 -27.9%
Trade receivable turnover (days) BoEWFIERE (HE) 39 48 -18.8%
Trade payable turnover (days) BoRENFERE (AZ) 34 46 -26.1%

2011 £E {4~  Annual Report 2011
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Financial Highlights 81 #5182

TURNOVER BY LOCATION OF CUSTOMERS

BREFRMEMZEXS

2011 2010

HK$594 million HK$735 million
AEATHEEE T tE=FRESET

M 62.1% M 71.2%
M 20.5% M 13.4%

7.6% 6.0%
0 3.4% 0 3.5%
0 6.4% 0 5.9%
@ United States of America 2 @ Mainland China Bl ARE Europe B () Canada fi&X
[ Rest of the world tt 5 E fth 3h [
TURNOVER BY PRODUCTION BASES
BEEMSBRZCEXRS
2011 2010
HK$594 million HK$735 million
RENTHBESEET +TE=ZFRAEEET
M 66.6% ™ 67.6%
@ 30.5% M 21.5%

2.9% 10.1%

0 0.8%

@ Indonesia EfE @ Mainland China 7 B8 A & Lesotho H R () Others Hftb

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZERERAE




Chairman’s Statement FfE IR &

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present to our shareholders
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011,

During 2011, the Group experienced the most difficult year
in its history. The economies of the US and the countries
of Europe continued to struggle and markets were rife with
fears of new setbacks, debt defaults and the possibility
of a double-dip recession in those regions. Amidst the
challenging business environment, the Group’s revenues for
the year ended 31 December 2011 were down by 18.1%
to HK$601.8 million. Fierce price competition for orders
from the Group’s customers and rising production costs
continuously eroded the Group’s profit margin. The Group
recorded a loss attributable to equity holders of HK$47.4
million and a basic loss per share of 11.74 HK cents for the
year under review.

Despite two rounds of quantitative easing by the US Federal
Reserve, the US economic recovery failed to gain steam
for most of the year. Due to the high unemployment rate,
the sovereign debt crisis in Europe, the partisan fight in
Washington over the federal debt ceiling and the decision
by Standard & Poor’s to downgrade the US government’s
AAA rating, trading conditions in the US deteriorated in the
latter part of the year 2011. As a result, the Group saw a
significant shrinkage of orders from its long-standing US
customers. The reduction of orders and the subsequently
expected further squeeze on profit margins exacerbated by
increasing production costs, spurred the Board to cease the
operation of the Group’s factories in Indonesia with export
solely for US customers in the last quarter of year 2011.
The Group also disposed of its 70% interests in the factory
in Lesotho to its minority shareholder because of slack US
orders. The cessation and disposal have proved effective
on staunching the financial bleeding suffered by maintaining
these operations. The Group expects the weak trend in
export markets to continue.

AANEBERRARNAEFS ([EFE]) -
MARARRBRRIEEARE R EME
A (GBI AKEDBE-_T——F
ToA=+—HBUEFEZFERSE-

TR —FENAEERKELFRRAER
FZ—F-EBKBMBEREE TR
MBI - M MBI E B %S H @ A g

BHFMEE EEEHUNEERERR
FHRENEERE ASEREEC
T——F+-_A=+—B8utFEzkzE
BAP18A%ERBE—ANTEE T K
EEEFPAIEMXMNERRSE MEE
ERANEFA FEAISAERZFE A
SERNDETERSERFEEARGE
BUOTtEN+ESTAEREXREE
11,7481l -

BEXEBAHERCHEITRAELR
REm EXEEEEREFINRZI
HeARNKRERSD BMNBREIRER
el ERNRE GRS LRERERMS
AR AR BORE FEXBE BN ZAAA
A MEEESIMAN T ——F T ¥
FHMAB - MAL  AEBREXEE
IR P 2RI BB - R AN E Y E)
EmEELATFXEERF, BEER
Do I EFERFAEERAR IR — R
BEMNERERNEE EFEEN_F——
FHRE-FEREFLEEXME - ERE
BRI EhE  AERETE HEERKRE
BRE 2 70% % T L BAR - BB HF IE
RERHECDEEUSRRR  AI DI
LEREXB LV BER AEEEY - B
A5 R EERESE
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Chairman’s Statement ¥ E R &

Mainland China is not immune to the euro zone crisis
risk. The rapid growth of its economy is slowing and
manufacturers are hindered by a shortage of skilled labour,
rising labour costs and appreciation of the Renminbi.
Nonetheless, it is comparatively a more stable market
offering great growth potential. One of the main objectives
of the Twelfth Five-Year Plan is to redirect Mainland
China’s economic growth to be fuelled more by domestic
consumption and less by exports and investment and
therefore to be more balanced and sustainable. Accelerated
urbanisation and rising disposal incomes should reinforce
domestic consumption as the main driving force for
economic growth in Mainland China.

During the year, the Group completed a placement of
74,300,000 shares, raising net proceeds of HK$48.3 million.
In addition, a good opportunity arose whereby the Group
successfully realised its investment in ShanDong WeiQiao
HengFu Textile Limited, an associate engaged in knitting,
dyeing and finishing of knitted fabrics. As a result, the Group
has further strengthened its liquidity position and financial
resources. Looking ahead, the Group shall continue to
rationalise its resources and strive to refocus, while exploring
and seizing business opportunities with high potential growth
in Mainland China. Through this strategic approach, the
Group’s aims to broaden its income base and create greater
value to its shareholders.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
heartfelt thanks and appreciation to my fellow directors and
all our staff for their dedication and commitment in helping
the Group to overcome the challenges encountered during
last year. On behalf the Board, | would also like to thank our
shareholders, customers, vendors and business partners
for their unfailing trust in and support for the Group over the
years.

Li Haifeng
Chairman

26 March 2012

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EE1%
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’'s
revenues amounted to HK$601.8 million (2010: HK$734.9
million) and its gross profit was HK$78.5 million (2010:
HK$98.2 million). Loss attributable to equity holders was
HK$47.4 million (2010: HK$48.8 million) and basic loss per
share was 11.74 HK cents for the year under review (2010:
13.13 HK cents).

In the year under review, buffeted by financial turbulence,
the global economic recovery was progressed slowly and
erratically. The ongoing European sovereign debt crisis
and the unprecedented downgrade of the US credit rating
from AAA to AA+ by Standard and Poor’s have seriously
dampened customers’ confidence. The economic woes and
unfavourable consumer sentiment have adversely affected
the apparel industry as retail customers are also more
closely watching their budgets. Against this backdrop, the
Group experienced a severe deterioration in US sales orders
during the second half of 2011. Turnover of the Group
plummeted by 19.1% to HK$594.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2011 compared with the previous year. As
a result of keener competition in securing orders from US
customers and rising production costs the Group’s gross
profit slid by 20.0% to HK$78.5 million (2010: HK$98.2
million).

To meet the challenges presented by the impact of the
difficult economic environment on our markets, the Group
has taken immediate steps to staunch its financial bleeding
and aimed at bolstering its overall competitiveness in the
long run. In light of the dramatical reduction of orders from
its US customers of long-standing, its factories in Indonesia
were forced to cease operations in the fourth quarter of
2011. Certain underperforming subsidiaries and associates
were also disposed of during the year. Noteworthy here is
the realisation of the Group’s associate interest in ShanDong
WeiQiao HengFu Textile Limited, a knitted fabric mill, and
the disposal of the Group’s factory in Lesotho, as both
have been operating at a loss during recent years. All
disposal gains on the Group’s interests in subsidiaries and
associates were included in other gains-net. Through a
series of operational streamlining and stringent cost control
measures, the ratio of selling expenses to revenues fell from
4.9% to 3.9% and administrative expenses decreased by
14.8% to HK$100.0 million.

EEERNWNR DN

RIRREH O
$El%§:§——¢+*ﬁ_+—

BEFEZREARNEE—BNTE
BAT(ZE—ZFF  £E ?@Eh+

BT MEEMAETNERATE
BLT(ZE—ZFNATNEZ-TES
TL) cBEFEACERFEE ARMLER
ANTLEtENt+EET(ZE—ZT4F:
NFNENTESBT) SRELAEEA
11748 W (ZF—ZF 13.1381) -

REBEFEAN FeReENEET 2
BRACBEIE B B IR B EEIE BT IEE  BUM
FREHCHSE FELTRLEFNIH
1B EB 25 BT R BAAAL T # EAA+
HoEEEREZHEREBENELO AR
KBEERRRBEBEBERE TEXEE
EEMNEAAL BREFEREZE Rt
ERB[T AEBR T —F T HFH
EHTERERAR AEEHE T ——
F+_A=Z+—HIFEZEEERE
FEZHIOI%ERBELTHE T8
T AR FIERE P 2 5T E 5 F M8k
RU K HE E R AN 7 $%I%WT@
200% =2t FN\EBERTEEL(ZE—F
FAFNBZTEBT) -

RENKCEBEISHAEB 2 MHEHERZ
B - AN BB AR S i iE ZE B RS R
O BERREZEBRENHFE - ENR
BEFRNRPEFATERR  AEBUR
FREHMER - ——FFNEWER
IFEEo AN BT RIB AWML 2K B
NAalRBERBRNMERFREE -EF
“i$§IFM$&ﬁmE+%m%ﬁ
NA (—RETBHRR) 2Bt N a)
W ARHEARSEECRKREREILHE
%%Evﬁﬂm%ﬁifaﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁ
EXEERKBRAR MBS QA 2 #x
sk 2 a5t Az —F
B RNEBBBER— R B ERNE
AT HIERE  FHERATHRE 2
R H4.9%0E] % £3.9% K& 1T X4
14.8% 2 — 188 TTe
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Segmental Analysis

In the year under review, the US economy remained weak,
thus our US customers were cost conservative in the face
of consumer budget constraints. They tended to place
smaller orders while competition was intensified, leading to
a significant drop in turnover for the US segment. In the year
under review, the US segment accounted for 62.1% of the
Group’s total turnover. Overall turnover from US segment
significantly dropped by 29.5% compared with the previous
year and resulted in an adjusted operating loss of HK$16.5
million (2010: adjusted operating profit of HK$9.7 million).

With a relatively stable and a continuous economic growth
trend in the Mainland China as well as rapidly increasing
disposable income and a vigorously expanding consumer
retail sector, turnover rose by 23.4% compared with last year
and accounted for 20.5% of the Group’s total turnover. The
adjusted operating profit for Mainland China was HK$6.5
million (2010: adjusted operating loss of HK$6.0 million).

Turnover from Europe and Canada accounted for 7.6%
and 3.4% of the Group’s total turnover respectively. The
respective adjusted operating losses were HK$1.6 million
for the Europe segment and HK$1.0 million for the Canada
segment. The unfavourable economic climate, especially in
Europe, contributed to this lackluster performance.

Indonesia

Owing to the substantial decline in US orders, the Group’s
factories in Indonesia have ceased operations since the
last quarter of 2011. During the year under review, turnover
from the Group’s production base in Indonesia dropped
accordingly and accounted for 66.6% (2010: 67.6%) of the
Group’s total turnover.

Mainland China

The factory in Heshan, Mainland China accounted for 30.5%
(2010: 21.5%) of the Group’s total turnover for the review
year. Due to further enhancement in production efficiency,
the factory’s performance improved and accounted for a
substantially larger portion of the Group’s total turnover.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EE#ERE

SE S

REEFER  ZBEEDRRES - At
AEEZXBEEPERHEEER K
EMBERT  ERIRAT mEBRT -
BEMEIZRBETEFPBERAB DI ERE
B BBz EXBRE K-
CIEFEAN XEDEMEREERZ XA
62.1% - KB DA BEBEXBREFK
ER 229.6%  H IR SEFHREZER
—TARABRETEET(ZZ—TF :&KH
BEgz2afnhatt+&ErT)-

FERAEZEBEESHY TREBEL 4
FEE - MEAXERAZT BEE
TEMSRERKR CEXBRREF LT
23.4% M ANRE B L XKEE20.5% ° F
REZEBABELZENA/NBRETER
T(ZE—FF KHEBELLEER A8
BT e

KEBMEMERN 2 EEBDBIEARE
ML EET.6%N3.4% < BUM 5 & K&
MEASHBEBZEABKEERER
—BAEATEBETER—AEET  KERK
TR (BMNLE) BBt DB RIRKE -

EDFE

AR ERGTE SRR AEBMANEE Z K

BERE——FHRE—FTRIELE-R

CIEFEN NEBHEAEREM 2 &

BMERE TS (hAREE B S ¥%66.6%
—E—TF:67.6%)-°

o B K B

URFBEAES LT ZBE 2 EXRER
EEFEHAEEBEERR30.5% (—F
—ZTHE:215%) BHREBECDE—F
RIVEERE HEECDHRRE EX
SEREXB L EIABEM-



Lesotho

The output of the knit factory in Lesotho accounted for 2.9%
(2010: 10.1%) of the Group’s total turnover for the review
year. To enhance the Group’s overall competitiveness, the
Lesotho factory was disposed of to its minority shareholder
near the end of the year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Adhering to a conservative financial management system,
the Group continued to maintain a healthy liquidity position.
During the year, to further strengthen its liquidity and
financial resources, the Group completed a placement of
74,300,000 shares which raised net proceeds of HK$48.3
million. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’'s cash and
bank deposits totalled HK$123.5 million (31 December
2010: HK$105.7 million). Working capital represented by net
current assets amounted to HK$120.4 million (31 December
2010: HK$49.0 million). The Group’s current ratio was 2.7
(31 December 2010: 1.2).

Bank borrowings included trust receipt loans amounting to
HK$4.4 million (31 December 2010: HK$73.3 million) and
term loans amounting to HK$30.8 million (31 December
2010: HK$71.3 million). The bank loans were denominated
in either RMB or US dollars. As at 31 December 2011, the
gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated as net debt
(total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents) divided by
capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity
holders, was -31.4% (31 December 2010: 29.7%).

ERE

HRERHBREZLEENRBBEFEL
REBMBEEF29% (ZT—FTF:
101%) * RIBFT A EEEEHRF N K
REBFERFRELAETELEHR -

nDBeRMBERIE

AEEFRHEECVBEERG SAE
BRFREEZZ2EERDRA - RNFER K
SEAE—WNRHERBESLIKE
TR B SRk B 5 74,300,0008% % 17 - E5
IS BFRENTFN NE=1TEB L - R
T——F+-_A=+—H KAEBEZEE
MIRTTERERRE—B-FT=8R21T&8
Br(Z2—2ZF+_-_A=+—H:—1&
ZTHAEtE+EBT) - EEES (AR
BEFE) A EBE-_TEN+&EET (=
T—ZTFE+_A=+—H WTHLEEHB
TC) cAEB R ER2T(ZE—F
F+-—A=+—H:1.2)-

BRITERBREEAKRBEERNE N+
BEET(ZE—ZEF+=-_A=+—8:
+tF=ZEF=TEEL) REHER=TFTZ
NTEBL(ZE—ZFEF+_A=+—
B:tF—B=1+&8%1) FLITEFKU
ARERETHE - RN _FE—F+ A
—t+—H AEBUEEFE (REZR
RERREFMBEEL ) BRUARR G ERTF
EANEBGZEARARBHENESHZER
BEHERAE-314% (T2 —ZTF+ A
=+—H:29.7%) -
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The debt maturity profile of the Group as at 31 December
2011 was as follows:

AEER-T——F+-A=+—HZ
EIREIHBE DA :

At 31st At 31st

December December

2011 2010

R=ZB——F RZZE—TF

+=ZA=+—-8B +ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

TAER FAT

Repayable within one year AR—FNEE 35,154 132,731
Repayable after 1 year, but within 2 years AN —FEEEMFEAEE - 9,000
Repayable after 2 years, but within 5 years A AWM FER{EBBARFRNEE - 2,833
Total HE 35,154 144,564

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year under review, the Group incurred a total capital
expenditure of HK$2.6 million (2010: HK$7.7 million), which
was mainly for additions to and replacements of leasehold
improvements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s sales are principally denominated in US
dollars. With factories and offices in Hong Kong, Indonesia
and Mainland China, operating expenses of the Group are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Indonesian
Rupiah, Renminbi with some in US dollars.

As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US dollar, the
Group does not expect to be exposed to any currency risks
in the near term. The Group will closely monitor fluctuation
of other currencies and, if necessary, will enter into forward
exchange contracts to reduce exchange risk.

CREDIT POLICY

Consistent with prevailing industry practice, the Group’s
business was transacted on an open account basis
granted to its long-standing customers. The credit ratings
of customers are constantly reviewed and their respective
credit limits adjusted, if and when necessary.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s bank deposits of
HK$11.7 million and land use rights of HK$15.7 million
located at Heshan, Mainland China were pledged as security
for certain of the Group’s bank borrowings.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group provides a harmonious working environment to
employees whose commitment and expertise are important
to the success of its business. The Group offers employees
rewarding careers and provides them with a variety of
training programmes. It rewards employees according
to prevailing market practices, individual experience and
performance. To attract and retain high calibre employees,
the Group also offers discretionary bonuses and share
options to staff members based on performance of the
individual as well as the Group.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a total of 1,101 (31
December 2010: 5,736) full-time employees in the following
regions:

flfe
PE(KERER)

Indonesia
China (Mainland and Hong Kong)

Total et

OUTLOOK

Despite the recent surge in the US stock market, healthier
corporate earnings, and rise in employment, the road to
economic recovery in the US is expected to continue to be
rough. The US unemployment rate still remains high and
many economists anticipate that the US Federal Reserve
will initiate a third round of quantitative easing to stimulate
the economy should it remain sluggish. US customers are
still very cost conscious and still lack the confidence in
the market to place large orders. In Europe, the sovereign
debt crisis has triggered tougher austerity measures
across the region and undermined the consumer demand
of EURO zone countries as well as elsewhere. Within
this unfavourable economic environment, the Group has
encountered intensified price competition and pressure on
profit margin for orders from the US market and considers
it would not be beneficial to the Company’s shareholders to
restart the operations of its Indonesian factories.
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For the last several years, Mainland China has been one of
the fastest growing economies in the world. According to
the National Bureau of Statistics of China, Mainland China’s
GDP and per capita GDP have been growing at a compound
annual growth rate of 14.9% and 14.2% over the last ten
years. The per capita annual garments expenditure in the
country’s rapidly expanding urban areas has risen along
with the growth in GDP per capita. The good times look set
to continue as the International Monetary Fund forecasts
Mainland China’s GDP to continue expanding at 9.4%
and the per capita GDP at 8.9% for the years from 2012
to 2016. The forecasted economic growth should further
accelerate urbanisation and increase the disposable income
of urban households. However, in view of rising inflation and
increasing labour cost, the Group intends to continue to
take appropriate cost control measures including enhancing
productivity, streamlining operational and production
processes in the Heshan factory so as to increase its
competitiveness.

Looking ahead, the Group will focus on the more stable
and stronger Mainland China market and become less
dependent on the soft and unstable business environment
from the US. The Group will adopt a prudent approach to
capture business opportunities with high growth potential
in Mainland China with the aim of maximising return to the
Company’s shareholders.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining and ensuring high standards of
corporate governance as good corporate governance can
safeguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance
corporate value. The Company continuously reviews and
improves the corporate governance practices and standards
of the Group from time to time to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Code (the “CG Code”) on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended
31 December 2011 except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. Mr Zhang Feng and Mr Yau Wing Yiu were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 7 June 2011 and 6 July 2011 respectively
without a fixed term of service, but is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of
the Company at least once every three years in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company. Pursuant to Code
Provision A.4.1, each of Mr Zhang Feng and Mr Yau Wing
Yiu has entered into a service contract with the Company
on 24 August 2011 for a term of three years commenced
from 7 June 2011 and 6 July 2011 respectively, which may
be terminated by either party thereto giving to the other
party notice in writing with a notice period of not less than 3
months (subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company).
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Board is led by the Chairman and currently comprises
five executive directors (one of whom is the Chairman) and
three independent non-executive directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr Li Haifeng (Chairman)

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Mr Xiao Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Chen Zhongfa
Mr Yau Wing Yiu
Mr Zhang Feng

The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 36 to 39 of this Annual Report. The Board possesses
a balance of skill and experience which is appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board,
which can exercise independent judgement effectively
and make decision objectively for the best interests of the
Company.

The Company does not at present have any officer with
the title of “chief executive officer” (“CEQ”) but instead the
duties of a CEO are performed by the Managing Director. In
order to have a clear division between the management of
the Board and the day-to-day management of the business
operation of the Company, the role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman
focuses on overall corporate development and strategic
direction of the Group and provides leadership for the Board
and oversees the efficient functioning of the Board. The
Managing Director is responsible for all day-to-day corporate
management matters as well as planning and developing
the Group's strategy. Such division of responsibilities helps
to reinforce their independence and to ensure a balance
of power and authority. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship) among members of the Board and in particular,
between the Chairman and the Managing Director.
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All the independent non-executive directors of the Company
have appropriate qualifications and their professional
opinions raised in the Board meetings facilitate the
maintenance of good corporate governance practices.
The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence. All the independent non-executive directors
meet the guidelines for assessment of independence as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointments and Re-election of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Company’'s Bye-laws
to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board. The
selection criteria are mainly based on the professional
qualification and experience of the candidate. All directors
are engaged on service contracts for a term of three years. A
newly appointed director must retire and be re-elected at the
first general meeting after his/her appointment.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third
of the directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
Every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, no director has a term
of appointment longer than three years. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election.

Board and Management

To enable all directors to make informed decisions in
the Board meetings and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, appropriate, complete and reliable
information prepared by the management are provided
in a timely manner. All directors are kept informed on a
timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s
business, including relevant rules and regulations. To
reinforce independence, the Board and each director
can have separate and independent access to the
management of the Company if additional information is
required. To further assist the directors to discharge their
duties to the Company, the Board has also established a
written procedure to enable directors to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses. No request
was made by any director for such independent professional
advice in 2011,
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In order to have a clear principle in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decisions, functions
between the Board and the management are formalized.
The Board has established a written guideline determining
which issues require a decision of the Board and those
delegated to the management. The guideline is reviewed
by the Board on a regular basis and has been posted on
the intranet of the Company. Matters reserved to the Board
for decision include the making of significant financial and
legal commitments, mergers and acquisitions, material asset
acquisitions or disposals, the change of share capital, the
approval of financial reporting, budgeting, management
succession and representation to shareholders. The
management is responsible for the day-to-day running of
the Group. The management is required to submit reports
on the operations to the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board on the development of
major projects or business proposals and their respective
implementation. The Board is of the view that such division
of responsibilities can enhance the corporate governance of
the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its directors and officers and
the insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year
to approve annual and interim results, review the business
operation and the internal control system of the Group and
the meeting schedule will be fixed at the beginning of each
year to facilitate fullest possible attendance. Between regular
meetings, other Board meetings are held to approve major
issues (if any). Agendas and accompanying Board papers
are sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board
meetings to ensure that the directors are given sufficient
review time. Draft minutes of Board meetings and Board
committee meetings are circulated to directors for their
review and comment while final version of the said minutes,
duly signed, are sent to all members for their records. All
said minutes are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any director.
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, six Board
meetings were held and the attendance records of directors ~ E RN BEIT/NAE

are set out as follows:
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No. of meetings
attended/eligible

meetings
HES
EEREE
Directors BE=E BRXHY
Mr Li Haifeng FgHE e
— appointed on 7 June 2011 ~R-F——FNALHEZF 5/5
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James THHEE 6/6
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn =BT E
— appointed on 7 June 2011 —R-ZF——FNHEHEZ T 5/5
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie BER A 6/6
Mr Xiao Yong HELEE
— appointed on 7 June 2011 ~R-F——FNALHEZF 5/5
Mr Rusli Hendrawan Rusli Hendrawan 5t 4
- resigned on 28 June 2011 —R-ZF——FNAZF+/VHEFFE 1/1
Mr Oey Tjie Ho HLAMEE
— resigned on 7 June 2011 —R-ZFE——FNHAEHFT 1/1
Mr Chen Zhongfa* PR B S At
— appointed on 9 September 2011 ~R-EFE——FNANAEZE 2/3
Mr Yau Wing Yiu* 5157 ke o
— appointed on 6 July 2011 —R-IF——F+LH N NHEZ T 5/5
Mr Zhang Feng* o & 5 A
— appointed on 7 June 2011 —R-ZF——FNHEHEZ T 5/5
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming* oR B0 BR 4 A
- resigned on 28 June 2011 —R-F——FNA -+ /NHEF 1/1
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.B.S., J.P* B S s 28 - ATt
- resigned on 9 September 2011 —R-ZE——FNANHEFT 3/3

Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin®
- resigned on 13 July 2011

# Independent Non-Executive Directors
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all directors have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the year.

Details of the directors’ interests in the shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2011 are set out on page 42
of this Annual Report.

To enhance the corporate governance of the Group as a
whole, the Board has established a written guideline on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for employees of
the Company or director or employee of the Company’s
subsidiaries or holding company who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Group or securities of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company in
2011.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Board set up the Audit Committee in 2000 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authority and duties. The terms of reference which
would be revised from time to time in order to align with the
new requirements of the CG Code and the Listing Rules
have been posted on the Company’s website. The Audit
Committee is to review the Group’s financial reporting,
the external auditor’s independence, internal controls
and corporate governance issues and make relevant
recommendations to the Board.

The members of the Audit Committee include:
Mr Yau Wing Yiu (Committee Chairman)

Mr Chen Zhongfa
Mr Zhang Feng
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All Audit Committee members are independent non-
executive directors. During the year ended 31 December
2011, four Audit Committee meetings were held and the
attendance records of members are set out as follows:

Ve

>

wE

O

FABREBEREYABIIENTE
£ RBE—F——E+-A=+—AL
FER BRTNAERERREH K
B2 RREHIIMT

No. of meetings
attended/eligible

meetings
HE
EEREE
Members RE SRR
Mr Yau Wing Yiu oK #8584
— appointed on 13 July 2011 —R-F——F+HAFT=HEZF 2/2
Mr Chen Zhongfa PR AE
— appointed on 9 September 2011 ~R-ZF——FNHANAEZ T 1/1
Mr Zhang Feng oR I 55 A
— appointed on 28 June 2011 —R-ZFE——FNAZTNNHEZF 2/2
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin RBE L&
— resigned on 13 July 2011 —R-F——F+ A+ =HFF 2/2
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming o Bl AR 5t 4
— resigned on 28 June 2011 —R-ZFE——F A=+ /THEFE 2/2
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.8.S., J.P. W E R g mE s A Fat
— resigned on 9 September 2011 —R-ZFE——FNANHFF 1/3

In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit Committee had
mainly performed the following works during the year of
2011:

(i) reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standards;

(i) reviewed the draft interim and annual financial statements
and the related draft results announcements;

(i) reviewed the change in accounting standards and
assessment of potential impacts on the Group’s
financial statements;

reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
comment on the fairness and reasonableness of the
transactions;
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(v) reviewed the Group’s internal control system
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget, and discussed the relevant
issues including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions; and

(vii made recommendation on the appointment or
reappointment of the external auditors and approved
their terms of engagement.

Remuneration Committee

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee in 2005
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference have
been posted on the Company’s website. The Remuneration
Committee’s role is to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure for directors
and senior management and to ensure that they are fairly
rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of
shareholders. The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee include determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive directors and senior management
as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.

The members of the Remuneration Committee include:

Mr Chen Zhongfa (Committee Chairman)
Mr Yau Wing Yiu

Mr Zhang Feng

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
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Except for Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie who is an executive
director, all Remuneration Committee members are
independent non-executive directors. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, three Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the attendance records of members
are set out as follows:
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No. of meetings
attended/eligible

meetings

HE

SERERE

Members BB BB
Mr Chen Zhongfa PR AE

— appointed on 9 September 2011 —RZFE——FNANAEZF 1/1
Mr Yau Wing Yiu o 5K i 9t A

— appointed on 13 July 2011 —R-IE——F LA =HEZF 2/2
Mr Zhang Feng oR I % A&

— appointed on 28 June 2011 —RZF——FNHA-ZFNHEZF 2/2
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie BOZR ST HE 3/3
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.B8.S., J.P MBS g mEs X FM+

— resigned on 9 September 2011 —RZFE——FNANHFE 2/2
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming ok B BA %% A&

— resigned on 28 June 2011 ~R-F——FNA -+ HET 1/1
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin BlAELEE

— resigned on 13 July 2011 —R-ZFE——F+ A+ =HEIT 1/1

The Remuneration Committee is accountable to the Board
and has approved the remuneration packages and other
terms of executive directors’ service contracts during the
year of 2011.

The main principles of remuneration policy of the Company
are:

() to retain and motivate executive directors and senior
management by linking their compensation with
performance as measured against corporate objectives;

(i) to align executive directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration with shareholders’ interests; and

(i) to ensure that no director or senior management or
any of his associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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When fixing the remuneration packages of executive
directors, considerations have been given to the
qualifications and experience of the executive directors,
their duties and responsibilities with and contributions to
the Group, the level of directors’ remuneration of other
comparable listed companies in Hong Kong, the Group’s
performance and the prevailing market condition. The
principal elements of the remuneration packages of
executive directors of the Company include salary, director’s
fee, double pay, discretionary bonus and share options.

Details of the remuneration of each director, on a named
basis, are disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements
on pages 105 to 106 of this Annual Report. Reimbursement
is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred (including
traveling and hotel expenses) in connection with the
performance of directors’ duties.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The directors will select
suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
make judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepare the financial statements
on a going concern basis. The Board’s responsibility to
present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
extends to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules as well as the information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 46 to 47 of this Annual Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a
sound and effective internal control system for the Group
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
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assets and to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations. The Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system and
reporting to the Board.

The Group adopts the principles outlined in /nternal Control
and Risk Management — A Basic Framework issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as
yardstick in establishing its control environment. The scope
of internal control relates to areas including effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group through the Audit
Committee. The review covers the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, their training
programmes and budget, and all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material internal
control aspects of any significant problems were noted. Both
the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that the
internal control system of the Group has been functioned
effectively during the review year.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers is the external auditor of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
external auditor received the following remuneration for audit
and non-audit services provided to the Group:

£ 8 B B &

BEMAGEGFMEBHRA/ARRAZIN
BB -BE T ——F+t-A=+—
BIEFE - SMNBSZEEDE BLIR AN 5 B H2
2B RIERFA RBUWET I 2

HK$’ 000

FET

Audit services EATIRTS 1,350
Non-audit services IEFE T AR 7S

Taxation services T R I% 407

Review of indebtedness statement EMEBKER 180

1,937

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from
the external auditor on its independence and objectivity
as required by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders’
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the voting right at general meetings of the Company, can by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company to convene a special general meeting for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
In compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules,
any annual general meeting, and general meeting at which
the passing of a special resolution is to be considered shall
be called by at least 20 clear business days’ notice, whilst
others may be called by at least 10 clear business days’
notice.

To further enhance the minority shareholders’ right, all
resolutions at any general meeting are decided on poll and
such practice has been adopted since 2005. The chairman
of any general meetings ensures that the shareholders are
informed of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll by
way of making the explanation at the commencement of the
general meetings. The chairman of general meetings also
ensures full compliance with the requirements about voting
by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of
the Company.
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In order to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
shareholders are encouraged to attend annual general
meeting of the Company at which the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Board committees are available to
answer questions related to the Group’s business.

Shareholders’ comments and suggestions together with any
proposals put forward to general meetings at a reasonable
time are welcome and such comments and proposals
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s address in Hong Kong or by e-mail to the
Company’s website. The Board endeavors to answer all
invaluable questions of the shareholders.

As a channel of further promoting effective communication
as well as fulfilling the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
corporate website, www.carrywealth.com, is maintained by
the Company to disseminate the relevant financial and non-
financial information on a timely basis and the published
information will be maintained at the above website for at
least five years.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, as at the date of this Annual Report, the public
float of the shares of the Company is sufficient.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 48.

The directors did not declare any interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2011 (2010: nil).

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011.

RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

()  the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium account.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had distributable
reserves amounting to HK$115,522,000 (2010:
HK$149,686,000), including the contributed surplus
of HK$147,694,000 (2010: HK$147,694,000) which is
distributable subject to conditions as set out above.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements.
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DONATIONS

No charitable donations were made by the Group during the
year (2010: HK$115,000).

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 27 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5
of this Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 8 May 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”). A
summary of the principal terms of the Scheme, as disclosed
in accordance with the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), is as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives
to qualifying participants to contribute to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and/or to retain
high-calibre employees and attract resources that are
valuable to the Group.

Qualifying participants

Any person being an employee, director (including
executive or non-executive director), consultant,
representative, professional adviser, customer, business
partner, joint venture partner, strategic partner, landlord
or tenant of, or any supplier or provider of goods
or services, to the Group, and any trustee(s) of a
discretionary trust of which one or more beneficiaries
belong to any of the abovementioned category(ies) of
persons.

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 12,360,000 which is 2.77% of the issued
share capital as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each qualifying
participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted an option
which, if exercised in full, would result in such person’s
maximum entitlement exceeding 1% of the aggregate
number of shares for the time being issued and issuable
under the Scheme.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular option, such period
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as
the directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the directors may determine, such period not to exceed
10 years from the date of grant.

Acceptance of offer

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 30 days from the date on
which the option is offered. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance
of the option duly signed by the grantee together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration of the grant thereof is received by
the Company.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
option shall be such price as the directors may
determine at the date of grant of the relevant option but
shall not be less than whichever is the greater of:

(@) The closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

The average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(©

The nominal value of the Company’s shares.

(viii) The remaining life of the Scheme

The directors shall be entitled at any time within 10
years commencing on 8 May 2002 to offer the grant of
an option to any qualifying participants.
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During the year, on 15 July 2011, the Company granteda FRN R -_Z——Ft+t A+ HH &
total of 11,800,000 share options under the Scheme to the R AR EZTE A T ATHE LA H

following persons:—

11,800,00017 B A% #E :

Number of
share options
Name of grantees Position held with the Company granted
ERHZ
BERAKSR REQREREZBAL BREHAE
Li Haifeng Chairman and Executive Director 3,700,000
=3 ITERPIITES
Lee Sheng Kuang, James Managing Director and Executive Director 1,000,000
FR5 EEHKERANTES
Huang Xuxian, Flynn Executive Director 3,000,000
=B HITES
Tang Chak Lam, Charlie Executive Director 500,000
BER MITES
Xiao Yong Executive Director 2,600,000
HE HITES
Rusli Hendrawan former Chairman and 1,000,000
former Executive Director
BRI EERAIMITES

All the above share options granted are exercisable from  FMlEREZAHEERER T ——F

15 October 2011 to 14 July 2021 at an exercise price of +A+HABE-ET-—F+A+mWAEA

HK$0.78 per share. The closing price per share immediately ~— F 171 - {TE B ASR0.78E T - B —

before 15 July 2011 was HK$0.76. E-——F+tA+THEBRIZKTERER
0.76/8 7T °

As approved by the board of directors and agreed by each  KEFSHANSERARE ®RH Lt
of the grantees, the grant of the above 11,800,000 share  11,800,00017 i % # & 1% B8 3% 7T 2 1§ X
options was cancelled with effect from 22 July 2011 in B B-ZT——F+A -+ -_H4AEK-
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Mr Li Haifeng (Chairman) — appointed on
7 June 2011 and Chairman on 28 June 2011

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn
— appointed on 7 June 2011
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
Mr Xiao Yong
— appointed on 7 June 2011
Mr Rusli Hendrawan
— resigned on 28 June 2011
Mr Oey Tjie Ho
— resigned on 7 June 2011
Mr Chen Zhongfa*
— appointed on 9 September 2011
Mr Yau Wing Yiu*
— appointed on 6 July 2011
Mr Zhang Feng?
— appointed on 7 June 2011
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming*
— resigned on 28 June 2011
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, B.B8.S., J.P*
— resigned on 9 September 2011
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin*
— resigned on 13 July 2011

# Independent Non-Executive Director

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr
Li Haifeng, Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn, Mr Xiao Yong, Mr Chen
Zhongfa, Mr Yau Wing Yiu and Mr Zhang Feng shall retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James shall retire from office by
rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Mr Li Haifeng
Chairman

Mr Li Haifeng, aged 41, was appointed as the Chairman
and an executive director in June 2011 and is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is also
the sole director of Dragon Peace Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr Li is responsible for overall
corporate and business development, and strategic direction
of the Group and provides leadership for the board of
directors of the Company. Mr Li has extensive experience
in information technology and waste water treatment
industries. He is currently an executive director and a
vice president of Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited
(“BEWG”) (a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) and the chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of BEWG Environmental Group Co., Ltd (formerly known as
Beijing Enterprises Z.K.C. Environmental Co., Ltd.), a wholly
owned subsidiary of BEWG, and is mainly responsible for
both the PRC and overseas water markets. In addition, Mr
Li is also an independent non-executive director of Simsen
International Corporation Limited, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr Li holds a Bachelor
degree in Law from the Faculty of Law in Peking University in
1992,

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James
Managing Director

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James, aged 65, is a founder of the
Group and the Managing Director of the Company. Mr Lee
is responsible for all day-to-day corporate management
matters. He is also responsible for planning and developing
the Group’s strategy. Mr Lee has over thirty years of
experience in the manufacture and distribution of apparel
products.
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Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn
Executive Director

Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn, aged 42, was appointed as an
executive director in June 2011. Mr Huang is responsible
for day-to-day corporate management matters including
business development and administration of the Group.
He has extensive experience in taxation, accounting and
corporate finance. Mr Huang is currently serving as an
executive vice president of Paragon Lakewood Group, where
he specializes in investment and business development.
Mr Huang also serves as a director of Jih Sun Financial
Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation. Mr Huang formerly served as the
chairman of the board and an executive director of Shang
Hua Holdings Limited (currently known as Beijing Enterprises
Water Group Limited), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr Huang also served as a director
of the board of First Choice Bank, of which he was one of
the co-founders. Mr Huang is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Washington
CPA Society. He graduated from University of Washington
with a bachelor degree of arts in business administration/
accounting in 1993. Mr Huang also holds an International
Master of Business Administration from the University of
Chicago Booth School of Business.

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
Executive Director

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie, aged 50, is a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall financial operation of the Group.
He has extensive audit experience with one of the big four
international accounting firms. Prior to joining the Group
in November 1999, Mr Tang was the head of finance and
accounting of a conglomerate with subsidiaries listed
on the NASDAQ in the United States and the Australian
Stock Exchange Limited and the China division of another
conglomerate listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr Tang is a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong, and is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom.

Report of the Directors EE iR &

BB L
HITEF

HIBFTEA 425 RZZE——FNAE
ZARATES BEAREZERATERLEE
BE% PRERASEZEBERKITH
ER-BARBBE it hbXmEREFE
= &8 o & 5t £ 3] K Paragon Lakewood
GroupZ $1TRIABE SEIRE R EHKE
R-BEENR KRB EBIHFRSHM
BMDERAR LMz AR AR #ITER
BNBRARIZEZT BEAEFE—K
RERFER ET 2 AE EEZEREAR
AE (ABILEKBEEEERAT) 28
EEIRFRWIITES - J 5L L5 RFirst
Choice BankZ EE &M B FAI P A Z
— EBEEABERERNEGHAI AT RE
BREHNESTALEE HEERER
BEREB R—NMN=-FERIHER €
FTETEM - JAEMEZ T AEME
PEREE T ERBRRELTEM0 -

BITEF

BERSTLE 508 BAARAHFMEER
ERE -REEAEBEZERUBER-
RHEAEECET KR BENAERE
FHETT 2 —EB - —hAWANE+—ANEA
AREER  HEER—REAER 2B
Lestire ZEEBETZHMB AR
# X BINASDAQ NN 7 5 2 5 P A IR
NEEH MEES —HAEBRMAMEmZ
HELREIPEEBHEE HELER
FRENEXGHE TRATEETMAS

RERFHFLAREFMAGcEREE -

2011 £E {4~  Annual Report 2011

37



38

Report of the Directors EE iR &

Mr Xiao Yong
Executive Director

Mr Xiao Yong, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
director in June 2011. Mr Xiao is responsible for business
development and exploring business opportunities with
growth potential in the PRC for the Group. He has extensive
experience in petrochemical and telecommunications
industries. He served as the chairman of Shanghai Ace
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Ace”), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, during the period from May
2008 to May 2011. Prior to joining Shanghai Ace, Mr Xiao
was a deputy general manager of XK AEIHAR A A, a
company principally engaged in research and development
of electronics and telecommunications related products as
well as network engineering investment management. Mr
Xiao graduated from Shanghai University of Electric Power
with a bachelor degree in business management in 1990. He
also holds a master degree in business management from
Zhejiang University.

Mr Chen Zhongfa
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Chen Zhongfa, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in September 2011 and
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr Chen has extensive experience in enterprise
management. During March 1995 to June 2001, Mr Chen
had been the vice general manager and general manager
of Shanghai Tourism Investment and Development Group
Company in the PRC. From July 2001 to March 2010,
Mr Chen served as the chief economist, CFO, a director
and the vice general manager of China Landed Property
Development Group Company in the PRC. Since April
2011, Mr Chen is the vice chairman of the China Commerce
Association for Senior Citizens and a senior consultant
to the Chinese Overseas Students Development Fund.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of
China Information Technology Development Limited whose
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange. Mr Chen obtained a master degree in
International Enterprise Management from the Post Graduate
School of the Shanghai Finance and Economic University in
1999. Since February 2009, Mr Chen is a Fellow Member,
Chartered Financial Practitioner of the Asia Pacific Financial
Services Association.
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Mr Yau Wing Yiu
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Yau Wing Yiu, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in July 2011 and is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has extensive experience in financial
management, corporate finance and investment. Mr Yau
was the partner and Chief Financial Officer of AID Partners
Capital Limited which is a private equity investment fund.
Mr Yau also worked for various listed companies in Hong
Kong and overseas and a number of international investment
banks. He is currently an executive director of China
Strategic Holdings Limited whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange and also an independent
non-executive director of HanKore Environment Tech Group
Limited whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. Mr Yau is an associate member
of American Institute of Certified Public Accountant and
an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountant. He holds a Master Degree of Business
Administration in Finance from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, Graduate School of Business and
a BA (Hons) in Business Studies from The City University of
Hong Kong.

Mr Zhang Feng
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Zhang Feng, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director in June 2011 and is a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is a businessman who has
about 19 years of experience in hi-technology industry with
areas covering satellite communications, system integrator
and other related services. Mr Zhang founded 1t &% i3 &
MR ERARATF (BEIRBE") in 1999 and 1t & 5
REBERMARLDAE (YBEHKXZE") in 2004 respectively.
Mr Zhang has been serving as the chairman and general
manager of /&1 X & and the chairman of & i X%
since their incorporations. He acted as the vice chairman of
Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association of China in 2010. Mr
Zhang graduated from Hohai University with double bachelor
degrees in industrial automation and business management
in 1992 and 1994 respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 9 December 2009, Carry Wealth Limited (“CWL"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Shinning Century Limited (“SCL”) entered into a
management services agreement (the “Management
Services Agreement”) to renew the terms of the
management services agreement dated 13 September 2001
(as amended by the first supplemental agreement dated 6
September 2004 and the second supplemental agreement
dated 24 November 2006) which expired on 31 December
2009 so as to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
for determining the annual cap amounts for the years ending
31 December 2010, 2011 and 2012.

Pursuant to the terms of the Management Services
Agreement, CWL provided SCL with management services
comprising procurement of sales orders, material sourcing,
accounting and finance, shipping and general management
services in Hong Kong at a management fee at 6% of the
total sales at the invoiced value to customers of SCL for
each calendar month. The term of the Management Services
Agreement commenced from 1 January 2010 and shall end
on 31 December 2012 and thereafter shall be renewed every
3 years unless terminated pursuant to the terms thereof.

As SCL was owned as to 70% by the Company indirectly
and 30% by Ms Chen Mei Chuan, Jennifer (“Ms Chen”), the
managing director of SCL, SCL was a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The ongoing
transactions between CWL and SCL as aforesaid constituted
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

() in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company and CWL;

(i)~ on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the Management Services
Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
above in accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The aggregate amount of management fees charged by
CWL amounted to HK$685,000 which did not exceed the
cap amount of HK$6,200,000 as disclosed for the year
ended 31 December 2011 in the Company’s announcement
dated 9 December 2009.

On 16 December 2011, Best Sphere Group Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) disposed of its 70%
interest in SCL to Ms Chen at a consideration comprising
cash of HK$1 and the waiver of debt of HK$3,382,000
of which Ms Chen had 30% indirect interest. Upon the
disposal, the Management Services Agreement and the
related continuing connected transactions between CWL
and SCL have ceased accordingly. The directors consider
that after the disposal, the Group will be better able to
rationalize its resources by focusing on the Group’s Heshan
factory in Mainland China in order to seize business
opportunities arising from the more stable and stronger
Mainland China markets.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

EFHR

R_E——F+_A=+—H BEEH
FKHEAE KD ([FHLBEEA])ZE352
BHREBTEHERF 2 E LIS RE
FHBTAEZTETESFR FNIZEST
B (2SR m AR F) B R P
A ANRBEESHEEAR TR 2K
g

F L FISKEE0.1074 T ¥ iE A

Number of ordinary shares

EERRHHE
Percentage
Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Total of issued
director Capacity interests interests interests interests interests share capital
HEBT
B a4 BAER RkER NRER HiprEz BEE RS
Mr Li Haifeng Interest of a - - 236,717,000 - - 53.05
controlled
corporation
EiTibe REHEE B
Note: Bt 5

The above shares were held by Dragon Peace Limited, which was wholly
owned by Mr Li Haifeng.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules), other than
directors or chief executives, of the Company in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
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Percentage of

Number of issued share

Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares capital
HE &7

REREZWH 56 EERRMDEE RABDEE
Dragon Peace Limited Beneficial owner 236,717,000 53.05

EmEA A
Note:

The above shares were held by Dragon Peace Limited, which was wholly
owned by Mr Li Haifeng. These interests were duplicated with the interests
of Mr Li Haifeng as disclosed in the section headed “INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the substantial shareholders, other than directors or
chief executives, of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF OTHER PERSONS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “INTERESTS
OF DIRECTORS” and “INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS” above, the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31
December 2011, the Company had not been notified of any
other person who had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in the information of directors of the Company,
which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

Upon expiry of the three year service contracts on 31
December 2011, Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James and Mr
Tang Chak Lam, Charlie has each entered into a new
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2012, which may be terminated
by either party thereto giving to the other party notice in
writing with a notice period of not less than 3 months. Mr
Lee Sheng Kuang, James is entitled to have a monthly
remuneration of HK$216,850 while the monthly remuneration
for Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie remains unchanged at
HK$111,210. All of their emoluments are covered by service
contracts.

By virtue of supplemental service agreements dated
9 December 2011, the monthly remuneration of Mr Li
Haifeng, Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn and Mr Xiao Yong has
been adjusted to HK$80,000, HK$60,000 and HK$30,000
respectively with effect from 1 January 2012.

Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn, an executive director of the
Company, was appointed as a director of Jih Sun Financial
Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation on 1 March 2012.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers
are as follows:

()  Purchases

— the largest supplier 16%

— five largest suppliers combined 55%
(iy Sales

— the largest customer 37%

— five largest customers combined 83%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above at
any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the Laws of Bermuda.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Sheng Kuang, James
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CARRY WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 48
to 132, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

BRRAKE
HEERRARATRK

(REREZFMALZHERLA)

AAZEED (AT RS [ ]9 )) EBAHAIE
MREASHZEF12BEEIZERBR QA
(AT IERA) REMBAR (5
BIEEE])NSEAEVBRE  WEAH
BREREBER-_F——F+t-_A=1+—
ARGZE Rk AR EERBRRERZZA
FFERNGEERARE LA 2HKRAR
R EERDEHREGERERER
URFESTBERBME R LMW THERE
BRlo

%5&&%%&%%%%%%%

BERAESAAERBEEEGFIMAE
B E BB HRE LN RES (RRE
) WEBRERBGEAMHTRE AL
RAEMBRRELEEMAFHRE
REBEARBUGAMBREMALE
HIRBRE S - AMEER A M HRER T FEH
PRRRAF Sk 85 RR 1 B B Ay B K 85 SR R A -

R RE

BANEERRERMANESEZS
RAVBHRREFEER ARRAERE
(CNN—FRAE) BOKRERERE
BRFERMNER - Rt 2 SN E 5
EEAME O RATERAREHN AR
EMEMALE ESAREREE-

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement Zr& U A 3R 3=

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZ T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——-F —E=-FF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FAT
Revenues Wz 5 601,843 734,931
Cost of sales $HE AR 7 (523,312) (636,760)
Gross profit = 78,531 98,171
Other gains/(losses) — net Hihlhas, (E18) —F58 6 1,459 (2,4083)
Selling expenses 4 65 Bl 2 7 (23,511) (36,061)
Administrative expenses TR X 7 (99,999) (117,343)
Operating loss K E 1R (43,520) (57,636)
Finance income & WA 8 619 457
Finance costs B & AR 9 (3,621) (2,292)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates DIREEE R ENE T,
(E#8) 184 (332)
Loss before income tax BRPT1S T A& 18 (46,338) (59,803)
Income tax (expense)/credit FBH (AX) #Be 10 (3,664) 7,023
Loss for the year FEEIE (50,002) (52,780)
Attributable to: B TY AT :
Equity holders of the Company RAGIEERFA A 11 (47,401) (48,829)
Non-controlling interests FEIE SIS (2,601) (3,951)
(50,002) (52,780)
Loss per share for loss attributable to A H A A &) s
the equity holders of the Company 8 AEEZ BB
during the year BREE
- basic (HK cents) —E AR () 12 (11.74) (13.13)
— diluted (HK cents) —#58 (B) 12 (11.74) (13.13)
Dividends IR B 13 - -

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 132 are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited {EEZERERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #R&ZEWAIRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+ A=+ —HIFE

2011 2010
—EB-—-F C—ZT-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAT
Loss for the year FEEE (50,002) (52,780)
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEBA :
Fair value gain, net of tax: NAEWE - MBRTIA
— properties, plant and equipment —WE - WBE NKEE 10,463 5,014
Reserves transferred to retained earnings HE T NIEFRERBZES
upon disposal of land and building, REBEN - IR IE
net of tax 206 -
Reserves released to consolidated income HEREE AR MHTB AR Z
statement upon disposal of interest in BaRRREER
associates and subsidiaries RE WA RE (8,407) -
Currency translation differences & X =58 3,437 3,443
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEBKA
for the year, net of tax MR TIE 5,699 8,457
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEXHEBEBER (44,303) (44,323)
Attributable to: B TNoI AT FE
Equity holders of the Company ARAIEZREA (40,699) (40,410)
Non-controlling interests FEIEHIM S (3,604) (3,913)
(44,303) (44,323)

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 132 are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.

FE5EEFI2EMM 2 T FHE
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 8 E&EE &

As at 31 December 2011 R—_Z——F+—-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —ZET-ZTF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FExT FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Properties, plant and equipment M WE REE 16 123,524 140,558
Land use rights 3 {55 A 17 15,725 15,282
Interests in associates REEE R Al 2w 19 - 42,880
Deferred income tax assets BEESEMEE 28 - 5,010
139,249 208,730
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 22 20,208 106,173
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H th e Y kI8 23 42,849 125,213
Financial assets at fair value through & Q0B ABZFEZ
profit or loss TREE 20 26 6,180
Income tax receivable & WP 15 HR 2,812 -
Bank deposits RITHER 24 11,718 31,099
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEBEEE 25 111,748 74,554
| 189361 343219
Total assets WEE 328,610 546,949
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable to HA QX FAEFZIFH A
the Company’s equity holders EBiEzEXRHE
Share capital N 30 44,617 37,187
Other reserves Hth % 1 31 95,667 63,952
Retained earnings RE &N 103,373 134,922
243,657 236,061
Non-controlling interests FEEHIMER 167 5,677
Total equity R 243,824 241,738

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited EEZERERAE




FHX
Managing Director
EFIE

Lee Sheng Kuang, James

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 132 are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet %88 EBER
As at 31 December 2011 R=ZE——&F+=-A=+—H
2011 2010
—g——F —T-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3T FE T FAET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FREBAR
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMBHAR 28 15865 10,943
Current liabilities REAEE
Derivative financial instruments THEEmIA 26 - 147
Trade and other payables g 5 Rk H M E N FRIE 29 33,767 146,817
Income tax payable FERTPTIS TR - 2,740
Bank borrowings RITEK 27 35,154 144,564
68,921 204,268
Total liabilities weE 84,786 305,211
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 328,610 546,949
Net current assets REBEEFE 120,440 48,951
Total assets less current liabilities AEEBABEE 259,689 252,681

Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Executive Director

HITEF

FE5E = F12B MM 2 M It E45E
FIERE — 301 -
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Balance Sheet EE B & X

As at 31 December 2011 R—_Z——F+—-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E-—-F CZ—ZT-ZTF
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 3T FE& T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB RARZE®RE 18 92,054 126,220
Amounts due from subsidiaries B B8~ | R 3R 21 151,770 104,049
243,824 230,269
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables Bt e W skIR 23 837 601
Income tax receivable FEWFT1S 410 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEER 25 467 523
,,,,, 1,4 1,124
Total assets WEE 245,538 231,393
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to HAQA G EZFEAELEZ
the Company’s equity holders BEXREE
Share capital LN 30 44,617 37,187
Other reserves H At 31 232,081 191,216
(Accumulated loss)/ (REFTE8R) REBAEF
retained earnings (32,172) 1,992
Total equity R 244,526 230,395
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBAEE
Other payables and accruals EMENFRIELRESTER 29 1,012 998
Total liabilities N =R 1,012 998
Total equity and liabilities mEZRAE 245,538 231,393
Net current assets REBEEZFE 702 126
Total assets less current liabilities #BEERAHAR 244,526 230,395
Lee Sheng Kuang, James Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
Managing Director Executive Director
EHpaHE HITEE

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 132 are an integral #5558 2 £132 B KM ~ M DIt E 454
part of these consolidated financial statements. AA T sk — &R0
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & & X & B &k

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZE T ——F+ A=+ —HIFE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

EATEREEAERN
Non-
Share Other Retained  controlling
capital reserves earnings interests Total
FEEEFIME
& Hitf#E RERF i st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET TET
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZZE-ZF—-F—B&#% 37,187 55,533 183,751 9,590 286,061
Comprehensive income Z2EBA
Loss for the year FEBE - - (48,829) (3,951) (52,780)
Other comprehensive income Hiz2mmIRA
Fair value gain, net of tax: DB MRTE
- properties, plant and equipment e/ EN S - 4,888 - 126 5,014
Currency translation differences 5= - 3,531 - (88) 3,443
Total other comprehensive income Hit2mUk A% - 8,419 - 38 8,457
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWBA (BB)BE - 8419 (48829  (3913)  (44,329)
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZZE—TF
+T-B=+—HB&% 37,187 63,952 134,922 5,677 241,738
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE——F—A—B#&# 37,187 63,952 134,922 5,677 241,738
Comprehensive income 2EMBA
Loss for the year FEBE - - (47,401) (2,601) (50,002)
Other comprehensive income Haz2mEIkA
Fair value gain, net of tax: RAEE  MBRBIE -
- properties, plant and equipment S/ EN ST - 10,515 - (52) 10,463
Reserves transferred upon disposal of & = i [ 18 5 i 2 fi
land and building, net of tax MR - (14,864) 15,852 (782) 206
Reserves released upon disposal HERBE QR R
of interests in associates and WIS Rz =
subsidiaries R R - (7,508) - (899) (8,407)
Currency translation differences N ER - 2,707 - 730 3,437
Total other comprehensive Hiz2m (BR) ARE
(loss)/income - (9,150) 15,852 (1,003) 5,699
Total comprehensive loss FHEHBELEH - (91500  (31,549)  (3,604) (44,303
Transactions with owners HEAANETZRS
Issue of shares BITR D 7,430 40,865 - - 48,295
Dividend paid to non-controlling BT FEEHI R 2 RS
interests - - - (1,906) (1,906)
Total transactions with owners HBEEANETZR BT . 7430 40865 - (1,906) 46,389
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE——%F
+-—A=1+—H&& 44,617 95,667 103,373 167 243,824

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 132 are an integral

part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement & 5B £ REXR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 B2 T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——-5 —ZE-ZF
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5 FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities EEEFF v HLRE
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEL (FTR)
operations ZRE 32 43,567 (32,704)
Interest paid =ENEYES! (3,621) (2,292)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEE T'J S (5,467) (512)
Overseas tax paid B &8N IR (747) (2,149)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEEESL(FTA)
operating activities REFH 33,732 (37,657)
Cash flows from investing activities REZFEB 2 HESRE
Decrease/(increase) L (i‘ hn)
in bank deposits RITER 19,381 (27,182)
Purchase of properties, ﬁ%E%% &% 5 K.
plant and equipment gl (2,648) (7,694)
Proceeds from disposal of ek == EWx BE K
properties, plant and equipment JBFTISRIA 8,353 1,447
Proceeds from HE /z} Gl
disposal of associates Fr g sk 33 41,363 -
Proceeds from k=4 ﬁﬁ%
disposal of subsidiaries Fr 5 sk 34 2,801 -
Payment for land use rights iiﬁﬁ%%ZH?ﬂ - (4,447)
Interest received 2 E 619 457
Net cash generated from/(used in) wEEBESLE (FTA)
investing activities IR & F 8 69,869 (37,413)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZBHRLAE
Dividend paid to non-controlling 21 #? Hl 1S 2
interests A% (1,906) -
Issue of shares %ﬁﬂxf 48,295 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERFTIE IR 257,480 406,610
Repayments of bank borrowings EBERITER (366,890) (335,619)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEES (FrA) B4
financing activities IR & FE (63,021) 70,991
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEBEXREE B
changes (3,386) (376)
Net increase/(decrease) RekBReFE I,E Bz
in cash and cash equivalents FIE N, Ol 37,194 (4,45%)
Cash and cash equivalents FUReEReFH TEIE £
at beginning of the year 74,554 79,009
Cash and cash equivalents FERe MRS EFBEEE
at end of the year 111,748 74,554

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 132 are an integral ~ 558 % %132?%%2%&75%% o)
part of these consolidated financial statements. BI S sk — 219
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 #& %R 3% Mf 5%

GENERAL INFORMATION

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and
trade garment products. The Group has production
facilities in Indonesia and Mainland China.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in units of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
26 March 2012.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis of preparation and the principal accounting
policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied for all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
land and buildings (Note 16), financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 20 and
26).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& ¥} 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards, and
interpretations mandatory for the first
time for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011 but not currently relevant to
the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and
events)

° HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related Party
Disclosures’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

e  Amendment to HKAS 32, ‘Classification
of Rights Issues’, effective for annual
period beginning on or after 1 February
2010.

e Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘Limited
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS
7 Disclosures for First-time Adopter’,
effective for annual period beginning on
or after 1 July 2010.

e Amendment to HK(IFRIC) - Int 14,
‘Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

° HK(IFRIC) - Int 19, ‘Extinguishing
Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

e  Third improvements to HKFRS (2010)
were issued in May 2010 by the
HKICPA. All improvements are effective
in the financial year of 2011.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited EEZERERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %% R 3% ff 3%

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and
interpretations that have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2011 and have not
been early adopted

e  Amendment to HKAS 1, ‘Presentation of
ltems of Other Comprehensive Income’,
effective for annual period beginning on
or after 1 July 2012.

e  Amendment to HKAS 12, ‘Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets’, effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1
July 2012,

e HKAS 19 (2011), ‘Employee Benefits’,
effective for annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2013.

e HKAS 27 (2011), ‘Separate Financial
Statements’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

e HKAS 28 (2011), ‘Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures’, effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

e Amendment to HKAS 32, ‘Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’,
effective for annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2014.

e Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters’, effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1
July 2011.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& ¥} 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and
interpretations that have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2011 and have not
been early adopted (Continued)

o Amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Disclosures -
Transfers of Financial Assets’, effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1
July 2011.

e  Amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

e HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’,
effective for annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2015.

o HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’, effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

e HKFRS 11, ‘Joint Arrangements’,
effective for annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2013.

. HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities’, effective for annual
period beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

e HKFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurement’,
effective for annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2013.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited EEZERERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %% R 3% ff 3%

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of adoption of the above
new standards, amendments and interpretations
that have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
not been early adopted.

As at 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010, an
amount of HK$24,962,000 fixed asset revaluation
reserve had been reclassified from exchange
reserve. The reclassification has no impact to the
total reserves as at both dates.

Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have
more than 50% of the voting power but is
able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto
control may arise from circumstances such as
enhanced minority rights or contractual terms
between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& ¥} 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. The financial
information of subsidiaries has been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either
at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited EEZERERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 #% %8 3% [fi 5%

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved
in stages, the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as
the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair
value of non-controlling interest over
the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration
is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& ¥} 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions - that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair
value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %% R 3% ff 3%

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& ¥} 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REBERITESHHEHE

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)

(Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued) 23 BEAF(48)
The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or AEEEGEREEZENEBRRER
loss is recognised in the consolidated income B AREK AR M EML UK
statement, and its share of post-acquisition BrAEME2ERKRANEZSHAUR
movements in other comprehensive income HEf2mEBRAARNER W HIE
is recognised in other comprehensive income BEREEFELBREFEE AR

with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of loss of associates’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. The financial information of associates
has been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associates are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %% R 3% ff 3%

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
collectively as the board of directors that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘administrative expenses’.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& ¥} 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2 fﬁ%&ﬁ&ii@%‘l‘ﬁ%ﬂ&i

25 HSMHER(E)

(c) Group companies (c) EERF

The results and financial positions of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
consolidated income statement are
translated at average exchange rates;
and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operation, and of
relevant borrowings, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and are translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %% R 3% ff 3%

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Properties, plant and equipment

Land under finance leases and buildings,
comprising mainly factories and offices, are
shown at fair value, as determined by directors
based on valuations by external independent
valuers which are performed on an annual
basis, less subsequent depreciation for land
and buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at
the date of revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of land and buildings are credited to
fixed asset revaluation reserve in equity. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged against fixed asset revaluation reserve
directly in equity and all other decreases are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& ¥} 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HEEBEERTFESHRKEE

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)
(Continued)
2.6 Properties, plant and equipment (Continued) 26 PE -BEREE ()

Properties, plant and equipment are depreciated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost or valuation
to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follow:

Leasehold land interests Shorter of remaining
classified as finance leases lease term or useful
life
Buildings Lower of 5% and the

estimated useful life

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease
term and the
estimated useful life

Plant and machinery 10% to 40%

Furniture, office equipment 10% to 40%

and motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) —
net’ in the consolidated income statement.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts
included in other reserves are transferred to
retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 #% %8 3% [fi 5%

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold
land interests recognised as operating leases and
land use rights are expensed in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the lease or the land use right. When
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in
the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and other long-term non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example, goodwill — are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. In addition,
all assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition
and re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #§ 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.1 Classification (Continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected
to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in currents assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected
to be settle more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’, ‘bank
deposits’ and ‘cash and cash equivalent’
in the balance sheet (Notes 2.13 and
2.14).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7% R 3% ff 3%

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date
— the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transactions costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investment
have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
‘other gains/(loss) — net’ in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of finance income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREBERITESHHEHE

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%&)
(Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets 211 EMEERE

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan
or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11

212

2.13

2.14

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with bank, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

2 ?ﬁé’)&iﬁ&iiﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁi

2.11

212

2.13

2.14

emMEERE (])
BHBERLS Rz EE ()
118 75 Bk 1L 15 18 BURR X 1 1% HA
R T Ut R A AT BB S K
RBREREE 2EMH (HIW
BN ERRREE) Rz
AIER ZREBRAERE
WA SRR B o

R
FEDBRRARAZERFE
(IBUEE ) I R o AN Th iR 55
ASE ([FRASEH ) AETE
RPN E S Pl RN e
RETRA - FA R BERST
Hit B AREEEEE R
(KIBEEREEREN) - ETE
RERKA A H#TFE/R
HEXBBRETR AT HEE
B BB

B R HER®REA

B BB IREN B E X5
BREPHEERIETRIEM
EWEF ZHBE-FARR—F
FUAR (R EBEBELEB
HmRE) ) KEz2E 5 RE
KA BESBERRBEE
BRIZIRIERBDEE -

B 5 hEMEYFIEN S RA
REER HRAERMNE)
R SR ANET B - WA R
(ERESER

HerRieFERE

REGHRESRERN - RER
ReFERARERTFERS
AIRER IR ER 2 SR1T 17 50 A
REBMBEA=EAUARNZE
S RBMERE -

2011 £E |~  Annual Report 2011

73



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #§ 3% [ 5T

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. They
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their
fair values. Changes in the fair value of those
derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREEBERTFESHRREE

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#8)

(Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 210 EMARGEER SR (48)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEFEH

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group has defined contribution plans. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension
plans on a mandatory or contractual basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due and
if applicable, are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group also has defined benefit
obligations, which define an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation. The liability recognised
in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit obligations is the present value of
the obligations at the balance sheet date,
together with adjustments for unrecognised
past-service costs.

(iii) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets) and non-
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable upon
retirement, when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either: terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for the future
operating losses.

Revenue and other income

Revenue from the sale of goods is the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. It is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when shipment is made.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns,
rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.256

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Processing income is recognized when services
are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the Group to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially
recognized at fair value on the date the guarantee
is given. Subsequently, the liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
any financial obligation arising at the balance
sheet date and the initial measurement, less
amortization calculated to recognize in the income
statement the fee income earned on straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience of
similar transactions and debtor’s payment history,
supplemented by the judgement of management
of the Group.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity
holders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
and Company’s financial statements in the year
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally
and has factories and offices in Hong
Kong, Indonesia and Mainland China.
Operating expenses of the Group are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, Indonesian Rupiah and Renminbi
whereas the Group’s sales are principally
denominated in United States dollar.
Thus, the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from these
currencies. At 31 December 2010, the
Group was also exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from South African
Rand as a result of its then operation in
Lesotho.

For Renminbi, at 31 December 2011, if
United States dollar had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2010: 5%) against
this currency with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year
would have been HK$1,000/HK$1,000
(2010: HK$273,000/HK$273,000 higher/
lower) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/ losses (2010:
losses/gains) on translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in this
currency.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For Indonesian Rupiah, at 31 December
2011, if United States dollar had
strengthened/weakened by 10% (2010:
10%) against this currency with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year would have been
HK$1,029,000/HK$1,029,000 (2010:
HK$204,000/HK$204,000) lower/nhigher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in this
currency.

The Group has certain investment in
foreign operations, whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation
risks.

For Renminbi, at 31 December 2011, if
United States dollar had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2010: 5%) against
this currency with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s net assets
at the year end would have been
HK$4,832,000/HK$4,832,000 (2010:
HK$4,278,000/HK$4,278,000) lower/
higher, respectively, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange differences on
translation of the foreign operation in
Mainland China.

EEZRERAH

3 MERRERE (&)

3.1 MEEBEER (&)
(a) mHEEE (&)

()
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For Indonesian Rupiah, at 31 December
2011, if United States dollar had
strengthened/weakened by 10% (2010:
10%) against this currency with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s net
assets at the year end would have been
HK$3,100,000/HK$3,100,000 (2010:
HK$8,996,000/HK$8,996,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange differences on translation of
the foreign operation in Indonesia.

The management closely monitors
the fluctuations of these and other
currencies and may consider entering
into foreign forward exchange contracts
from time to time so as to better manage
these foreign exchange exposures, when
required. Currently it does not do so.

Price risk

At 31 December 2010, the Group was
exposed to equity price changes arising
from its holdings of financial assets.

The Group is not exposed to price risk
as at 31 December 2011 as the Group
no longer holds any equity investments.
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3.1 MEEBEER (&)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group has interest-bearing bank
deposits. However, the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. At 31 December
2011, if interest rates on the interest-
bearing bank deposits had been 10
basis points (2010: 10 basis points)
higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year would have been HK$12,000/
HK$12,000 (2010: HK$11,000/
HK$11,000) lower/higher, respectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
incomes on floating rate bank deposits.
The Group’s interest-rate risk also arises
from bank borrowings. At 31 December
2011, borrowings were primarily at
floating rates. The Group generally has
not used interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Group
regularly seeks out the most favorable
interest rates available for its bank
borrowings.

At 31 December 2011, if interest
rates on the foreign currency dollar-
denominated borrowings had been 10
basis points (2010: 10 basis points)
higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year would have been HK$35,000/
HK$35,000 (2010: HK$145,000/
HK$145,000) higher/lower, respectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expenses on floating rate borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3 MERRERE (&)

3.1 MEEBEER (&)

(b) Credit risk (b) EFE@EE
Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from AEEBZEERBREER
cash and cash equivalents and deposits with BEREAFAEFEEE -

banks and financial institutions, as well as
credit exposures to customers such as trade
receivables. The carrying amount of these
balances in the balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

The Group’s bank deposits are placed with
banks and financial institutions which are
highly reputable with multinational presences.
Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these banks and
financial institutions as they have no default
history in the past.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by
the unfavorable economic conditions and
the lower liquidity situation, which could in
turn impact their ability to repay the amounts
owed. Deteriorating operating conditions
for debtors may also have an impact on
management’s cash flow forecasts and
assessment of the impairment of receivables.
To the extent that information is available,
management has properly reflected revised
estimate of expected future cash flows in their
impairment assessments.

ERTT MRS BB 273
ARmEFREZEE
BRESEEREA - IF
REERABRAZFIALZ
EEENASEEHET R
BEZRSIEERR-

AREBE ZRITFRFRH
HBEBERITRE RS-
EEEN NERERZF
RIT R BT aEETT
BHMmMELEMERE It
AR EERBELEE
HIACER

AEBE 2 EHARTERAS
MEBRARRBDE 2
BMmEZATE EMF
BREEERRRZEE
BEBAZKERERI
TAEFEEEEHRS
M 2 TEOB Ko Wk IR
MEZFE-EEEERE
WEEBEH BT H
AL A E R TE
HIRHBR 2B 2 BT
ate

2011 £E |~  Annual Report 2011

85



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #§ 3% [ 5T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

The credit quality of the customers is
assessed based on their financial position,
past experience and other factors. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with
appropriate credit histories.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk given that the top
5 customers accounted for 86% (2010: 73%)
of the Group’s total year end trade receivable
balance. However, the Group does not
believe that the credit risk in relation to these
customers is significant because they have no
history of default in recent years.

The Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables is good and management is
of the opinion that provision for uncollectible
receivables is not necessary.

Liquidity risk

The Group meets its day to day working
capital requirements, capital expenditure and
financial obligations through cash inflow from
operating activities and the facilities obtained
from banks.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZERERAE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEBREE(#)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEREER ()

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) nEBELEE (&)
Specifically, for bank loans which contain a HEERE  BHRITERF
repayment on demand clause which can be HEEXKEREX TAE
exercised at the banks’ sole discretion, the FAIG X AT RIRTTE2EEE
analysis shows the cash outflow based on T Ao g B RIRE
the earliest period in which the Group can be REBEANR &R M
required to pay. MEERIRSMEEE-

Group
rEE
On Within
demand 1 year Total
RERE —FR et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET
Trust receipt loans SR E R - 4,431 4,431
Bank borrowings RITEX 30,723 - 30,723
Bank interest payables FEAT R 1T H B 413 - 413
Trade and other payables B 5 MHAM
JE 1~ 5RI8 - 33,767 33,767
At 31 December 2011 N_T——
+=—A=+—H 31,136 38,198 69,334
Trust receipt loans =L UUIR E X - 73,279 73,279
Bank borrowings IRITE R 51,535 19,750 71,285
Bank interest payables JERTERIT AR 1,447 - 1,447
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENFKIE - 146,817 146,817
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZE—TF
+—-—H=+—8H 52,982 239,846 292,828
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEBREE(#)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERBER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEELREE (&)
Company
b NN
Within
1 year Total
—FR et
HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Other payables and oAt B 5RIE &
accruals, at 31 EEER RZT—F
December 2011 +=ZA=+—H 1,012 1,012
Other payables and HAh TR R
accruals, at 31 EAER RZT—ZF
December 2010 +=-—A=+—H 998 998
The table below summarises the maturity TEREYH A BB ZHIE
analysis of bank borrowings with a repayment TR RIRE SR
on demand clause based on agreed %FﬁﬁZ%fE%%ﬁ\%Fﬂﬁ%

scheduled repayments set out in the loan

agreements, while interest payments are
computed using contractual rates. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not consider that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

TEH Z BB 47 o FLB AT
RIEBHFRAF FT K
REBZHBHERR EF
I AR ABRITAFITERE K
AR ERNNBEE-EF
BiE FRARTERKS
RIBERBHEMEZEE
ERAMER-

Group
r&
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
R -EZ@MFA  MELER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL TAT THER

Bank borrowings BITER 30,723 - - 30,723
Bank interest payables FEfTIRITH 8 413 - - 413
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F

+-A=1+-H 31,136 - - 31,136
Bank borrowings ROEH 59,452 9,000 2,833 71,285
Bank interest payables FERRATHE 1,271 157 19 1,447
At 31 December 2010 NZ_ZE-%F

+-A=1+-H 60,723 9,157 2,852 72,732

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited {EEZERERAE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

3 MERRERE (&)

3.2 E&mREEHE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is “capital and reserves attributable
to the Company’s equity holders” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

On 27 July 2011, the Company completed a
private placement of issuing 74,300,000 ordinary
shares at a price of HK$0.65 per share with a
total cash receipt of HK$48,295,000. The private
placement has improved the Group’s gearing ratio
as at 31 December 2011.

AEENESEEBRE 2K
EAREEREEEZE U/K
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AR S AKEFRED
BABREIABIEE A -
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EREXRA R [HAARRAE
DA ARG 2ER KR

RZ_E——FttHA-_++tB8"
QA TR OE K& IR S R0.657%
JC 2 B 1% 3£ 1774,300,000/% &
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERBRER ()
(Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 32 BeRMBEERE (&)
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2011 and 2010 RZE——FR_FE-—FF
were as follows: +—A=+—HHELXREGEL
BN
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Total borrowings BEX 35,154 144,564
Less: cash and cash BoReMIReEEBEIEE
equivalents (111,748) (74,554)
(76,594) 70,010
Capital and reserves BAARERTE ARG
attributable to BEARREE
the Company’s
equity holders 243,657 236,061
Gearing ratio BERB G X (31.4%) 29.7%
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 NREZMGE
The table below analyses financial instruments TRABEEDTIEARED]
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The RZe&BMITE-TRKRNZE
different levels have been defined as follows: EWT:
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—H HREEXKBER
markets for identical assets or liabilities RILER™T S 2 W
B (REHE)
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices FZR BRWAAFE—F2RW
included within level 1 that are BN BEXBEZ
observable for the asset or liability, AERAEE (AE
either directly (that is, as prices) or ) EE (AR E
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) B) i A&
Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are F=H VIEBBETEHEEM
not based on observable market data BEARNEECEE
(that is, unobservable inputs) SKBEZB AL
(BIRAT SR 2 8 A
ER)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 December

3 MERRERE (&)

3.3 NREZMHE(K)

TREINAEER T ——F
TZA=1T—HEAREFE

2011. LEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Total
E—R BZR @at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FERT
ASSETS BE
Financial assets at fair value AR ET ABZE
through profit or loss JEMEE
— Leveraged foreign — R R EIINE
forward exchange =5
contracts - 26 26
The following table presents the Group’s assets THREVIAEER-_ZE—ZTF
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 +-—A=+—HBEZAREF=E
December 2010. ZEBEENBE-
Level 1 Level 2 Total
— & E-R 45
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAEL FAET
ASSETS BE
Financial assets at fair value & RQAREFTAEZ
through profit or loss JEMEE
- Securities listed on the — B FR
Stock Exchange EmzES 6,180 - 6,180
LIABILITIES BfE
Derivative financial fTEemI A
instruments
~ Leveraged foreign — g 1R R HIME
forward exchange R
contracts (147) (147)
6,180 (147) 6,033
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The leveraged foreign forward exchange contract
is not traded in an active market, and the fair value
is determined by using the quoted price provided
by the counterparty financial institution at the
balance date. As all significant inputs required
to measure the fair value of this instrument is
observable, it is included in level 2.

At 31 December 2010, the fair value of securities
listed on the Stock Exchange was based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
and it was included in level 1. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group was the
current bid price.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZ:BRERAH]
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the
management of the Group considers it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets in the period
in which such estimates have been changed.

(b) Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of
the realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories in the period in which such
estimates have been changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. Provisions are
applied to receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of impairment
of receivables requires the use of judgment and
estimate. Management uses the repayment history
of the customers to assess the credit quality of the
receivables. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables in
the period in which such estimates have been
changed.

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation
of property, plant and equipment

The management of the Group determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The management of the Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives; actual residual values may
differ from estimated residual values. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore depreciation
expense in the future period.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZERERAE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights

The Group assesses annually whether property,
plant and equipment and land use rights have
any indication of impairment. The recoverable
amounts, if required, are determined based on
value-in-use calculations or market valuations.
These calculations require the use of judgment and
estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset value may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell or net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
income statement.

Land and buildings in properties, plant and
equipment carried at valuation

Land and buildings in properties, plant and
equipment, comprise mainly of factories and
offices, are shown at fair values determined by
directors based on valuations performed by
external independent valuers on an annual basis.
In arriving at the valuations, significant judgement,
assumptions and economic estimates have to be
made.

4 RBEEERAE (&)

(e)

(f)

W BB KX fa & it E A
fz Eatin(E

AEEBFFEDE BE M
R R LI A TR E D
ReAEeE (MERE) T
RBERBEEFEDEXTS
fMEEBE -ZFHEFTEFD
Al

BEEETEERERERH
i CHARE: ((RE2HR
AREBENAEBEEEREER
B 7 =4+ (i) AT Y Bl & 28 (BD
DAMER H BB Sl 5 A B
EXBHERABEEMBRZK
KERBREFA_EFIR
BEI)EARAXFEERE
18+ K (iii)Am B3R & 7t 8 7880 P
HzEXE2RERERE B
ZEREREBANLEIAEE
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REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in garment
manufacturing and trading. Revenues recognised
during the year are as follows:

5 BEkoBEH

AEEEFERERAKRERES -
REFERER 2T

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET

Turnover R
Sale of garment products 6 X X E m 579,869 718,596
Processing income WA 14,343 16,335
594,212 734,931
Sale of scrap materials iHE BE YR 7,631 -
601,843 734,931

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the board of directors
that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group’s management considers the business
principally from a geographic perspective. Business
reportable operating segments by location of
the Group’s customers are identified in five main
geographical areas namely the United States of
America, Mainland China, Europe, Canada and rest of
the world.

The Group’s management assesses the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of
adjusted operating results. This measurement basis
includes results of the operating segments before
corporate administrative expenses, finance income,
finance cost, share of results of associated companies
and tax, but excludes material gain or loss which
is capital in nature or non-recurring nature such as
impairment.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZERERAE
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REVENUES AND SEGMENT 5
INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s segment information for the
year by geographical segment is as follows:

Geographical segments by location of customers

Bk oBEH (&)

REERFARMEDFE D29
MEB DM

BRERMEMBS ZHES &R

Adjusted operating results

Turnover for reportable segments
AHEIHZ
EXE BRARKEEE

2011 2010 2011 2010

“2--% -Z-TF CZB--f C—ZT-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FET FET FHT

United States of America % 368,909 523,091 (16,510) 9,681
Mainland China B K B 121,757 98,670 6,542 (6,024)
Europe B M 44,918 43,874 (1,627) 137
Canada msx 20,141 25,405 (1,041) 444
Rest of the world SR 3 &= 38,487 43,891 (2,907) 45
594,212 734,931 (15,543) 4,283

Revenues of approximately HK$218,893,000
(2010: HK$243,367,000), HK$84,750,000
(2010: HK$122,110,000), HK$67,382,000 (2010:
HK$74,428,000) and HK$62,478,000 (2010:
HK$31,461,000) were derived from the top four
external customers respectively.

#9218,893,0008 L (—Z T —ZF:
243,367,000/ 7T ) * 84,750,000/%
T(ZZE—ZF:122,110,000%
JT) 67,382,000 L (— T —Z
F 1 74,428,000/% 7T ) X 62,478,000
BIL(ZE—ZF:31,461,000/%8
TT)ZWEm T RIRE ™ AR
)E- °
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5 REVENUES AND SEGMENT 5 Kok EBEH ()
INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical segments by location of customers REFMEMBISZCHES S
(Continued) (#)
A reconciliation of the segments’ adjusted operating DE ARG EFEERFTEEE
results to loss for the year is provided as follows: HERIAT
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Adjusted operating (loss)/profits for 7] ¥ 25 7 36~ 4% B 4L &
reportable segments (E518) & F (15,543) 4,283
Sale of scrap materials HEBRZYE 7,631 -
Other gains/(losses) — net Hibhlhas, (E18) —F58 1,459 (2,403)
Impairment of properties, Y% BB NREERE
plant and equipment (4,464) (5,348)
Corporate administrative expenses 1% 1TE X (32,603) (54,168)
Operating loss KR (43,520) (57,636)
Finance income B & WA 619 457
Finance costs Bl & AR (3,621) (2,292)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates D 1B & A &1 F|,~
(E1E) 184 (332)
Loss before income tax bR ETIS T AR (46,338) (59,803)
Income tax (expense)/credit FIBH (AX) e (3,664) 7,023
Loss for the year FEER (50,002) (52,780)
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REVENUES AND SEGMENT 5 W@RFEBEHE (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments by location of customers REFMEMBISCHES S
(Continued) (#)

Reportable segment’s assets, which represent AHREDHEERRE MR
accounts receivable by geographical locations of Bz W HKIE-AIREDEEE
customers, are reconciled to total assets as follows: HEEEHRAT

Segment assets

PHEE
2011 2010
—B-—f —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAETT
United States of America E=H 11,449 52,434
Mainland China A K 17,044 27,928
Europe M 2,203 1,523
Canada meEx 103 1,723
Rest of the world R E 3 = 1,743 12,157
32,542 95,765
Unallocated: TRe o 8
Properties, plant and equipment M BE R&E 123,524 140,558
Land use rights T A 15,725 15,282
Interests in associates i A/NC] o - iy - 42,880
Deferred income tax assets BERSHEE - 5,010
Inventories rE 20,208 106,173
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ TR IE - Z & &
receivables H & R IB 10,307 29,448
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABEEREZ
through profit or loss TREE 26 6,180
Income tax receivable JE W 15 FR 2,812 -
Bank deposits |ITHERK 11,718 31,099
Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&EEER 111,748 74,554
Total assets per balance sheet BEBBERAIICZBEE 328,610 546,949
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6 OTHER GAINS /(LOSSES) - NET 6 Hflsz (BR) —F&
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Net fair value gains/(losses) on PTESRIEZ ARF
derivative financial instruments: Bl (BE):
Leveraged foreign forward BERIEHINES K
exchange contracts
- not yet matured — 18] >k 2] B 173 (147)
Net fair value losses on financial BERAnEABREY
assets at fair value through PRMEEZANFE
profit or loss: B8
Listed equity securities ETRAE S - (2,145)
Foreign currency linked EAHNEE 0 2
structured notes EEMRE - (111)
- (2,256)
Gain on disposal of listed SeR == il N
equity securities FH 2 W 312 -
Loss on disposal of properties, HEME BE K&
plant and equipment w2 EE (2,680) -
Gain on disposal of interest HERBE AR Z
in associates M 2 Was 3,452 -
Gain on disposal of interest HERMBARZ
in subsidiaries e 2 Was 202 -
Total other gains/(losses) — net Hipalzs, (E8)
— 1,459 (2,403)
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Operating loss is stated after crediting and charging the

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7% R 3% ff 3%

7 BUHHESBZRAX
MEBBREARNKRTIISES

following: FaTE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Raw materials used £ A8 2 R 263,020 407,637
Changes in inventories of finished &k & ¥ &k @2
goods and work in progress FE% 56,597 (12,101)
Depreciation of properties, ME - BERKEITE
plant and equipment 21,103 21,601
Impairment of properties, Y% B MEERE
plant and equipment 4,464 5,348
Gain on disposal of properties, HEWHE BEEEZEZ
plant and equipment I &= - (345)
Amortisation of land use rights b {55 P R 8H 342 306
Employee benefit expense EERAMAX
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (T EIEEZEEME)
(Note 14) (Mf5x14) 184,720 215,491
Operating lease rentals wEHERS
— land and buildings — T REF 5,980 6,620
Auditors’ remuneration =B A B & 1,953 1,893
Net exchange (gain)/losses MEH (W) BEFE (755) 280
Others HAh 109,398 143,434
Total cost of sales, selling expenses $H&E A HERT &
and administrative expenses 1T L 4B %8 646,822 790,164
FINANCE INCOME 8 MBWA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Finance income on short-term RHERITERZ
bank deposits BE WA 619 409
Dividend income on listed EFRAZBSZ
equity securities i& B A - 48
619 457
FINANCE COSTS 9 MEMF
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Interest expenses MER X
- bank borrowings —RITERK 3,621 2,292
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 10 FRiBIRFAX (EXR)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income taxes on profit derived from
operations in Indonesia and Lesotho are provided at
the rates of 25% (2010: 25%) and 15% (2010: 15%)
respectively. The operation in Mainland China was
granted a tax holiday of 2-year full exemption and
3-year 50% reduction and 2011 is the second year of
50% reduction.

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the
income statement represents:

BEAFEBHEIBEFT NG ER
A IR T R16.5% (T — T
16.5% ) st HEE - HE MK RFEE
BATEERF 9 B1%25% (=T —
TE:25%)M16% (T —F4F:
15% ) 2 TR RGPS ER - P
AEXEKERAHB AIXMESE
AR MNEE=F/e—FFHE"
M-_E——FAF _FEHe ¥/
HEE -

ne/ (G WARKZFAEHE
B

2011 2010
—F——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET

Current income tax EHMEN
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBEMEN 839 654
Over-provision in prior years NEFEHBERE (210) (6,487)
Deferred income tax (Note 28) EIEFRTEH (B 5E28) 3,035 (1,190)
Income tax expense/(credit) TR, (E®) 3,664 (7,023)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

2SR BIRR P15 % A 5 18 2 B 1R A Al
REMERA TR E N ER Z ¥

weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the O EEACERERE:
consolidated entities:
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before income tax FriS T Al B (46,338) (59,803)
Tax calculated at domestic FIEBIR 2 BEIRE
tax rates applicable to loss EABEGFTE ZHIA
in the respective countries (11,257) (12,997)
Income not subject to tax RN WA (1,753) (1,065)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR HEL 2 B 5,924 4,500
Unrecognised deferred tax assets  RIERIELEFIBE = 10,960 9,026
Over-provision in prior years INEFEBERE (210) (6,487)
3,664 (7,023)
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 %% 3§ 3% [fi 5%

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of loss of approximately HK$34,164,000
(2010: loss of HK$37,880,000).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year. As the Company has no dilutive
potential ordinary shares during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010, the diluted loss per share

11

12

FAFIRGRBAREZER

BN WNEIR vl
BaBEBEARLEEBREY
34,164,000 7T (= E—=F
37,880,000/ 7T ) °

BREBR

BREAEBENDBEEAARERT
BEAEBGEBEERUNFREEITER
PR Bz IEF I EETE - AR A
REBEE_ZT——FRER_ZT-ZF
+ZA=+—HLEFERALEE
Bt TER MEeREEEIEE

ZN
vl
F:

mﬁw
Tl‘ﬂETﬁﬁEEI

equals to the basic loss per share. ERNEBRERNEBIE-
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Loss attributable to equity holders AR GIHEZRIFA A
of the Company JE 1 &5 18 (47,401) (48,829)
Weighted average number EBRTERRKRE 2
of ordinary shares in issue nEFHEE (Fik)
(thousands) 403,833 371,874
Basic and diluted loss per share EREARNEEEIE
(HK cents per share) (FRAEM) (11.74) (13.13)
DIVIDENDS 13 IRA

The Company did not declare dividends for the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

ARAFERBRE-F——FR=
T-FE+-A=+-ALFEZ
TR

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 14 ERBFIAXZ (FAEEESFH

(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’ &)
EMOLUMENTS)

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FE T FET

Wages and salaries Hekine 147,266 204,373

Termination benefits e (B 32,126 1,580

Pension costs RIKE R A 5,328 9,538

184,720 215,491
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14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Forfeited contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) totaling HK$174,000
(2010: HK$12,000) were utilised during the year.

There is no contribution payable in relation to the MPF
Scheme at the year end (2010: Nil).

The Group operates/participates in the following
pension and post retirement plans:

(i)

(i)

The MPF Scheme for employees in Hong Kong,
under which the Group and its employee each
make a monthly contribution to the scheme at 5%
of the qualifying earnings of the employee, subject
to a monthly cap of HK$1,000.

The Group’s Indonesia subsidiaries do not
operate any pension plan in Indonesia. However,
according to the labor law in Indonesia, the
employer is required to pay retirement benefits
to the employees upon their retirement and the
retirement benefits are calculated based on the
final monthly basic salary and the years of service.
During the year, all the related benefits have been
paid to the employees following the temporary
cessation of the factory operations in Indonesia.
As at 31 December 2011, the Group is not liable
to any material liabilities arising from retirement
benefits.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
contribute approximately 11% of the basic salaries
of their employees to retirement schemes operated
by municipal governments. Other than the
mandatory contributions, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or any
post retirement benefits. The retirement schemes
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees. In addition,
according to the labor law in Mainland China, the
employer is required to pay retirement benefits to
the employees when employment is terminated by
the employer before the normal retirement date.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited {EEZERERAE
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15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

15 BRBEHAY -EERERE

- DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR BAEZHE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM&£
The remuneration of every Director for the year HE-_T—F+_A=+—
ended 31 December 2011 is set out below: BIEFEEEE 27 E W
T
Employer’s
contribution
Other to the MPF
Name of Director Fees Salary benefits Scheme Total
BESHE
EEpg e M 0 HAEN EIHX @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Mr Li Haifeng $Mﬁt%_d;( RZZ——%F
(appointed on 7 June 2011) NAtBEZT) 70 493 29 6 598
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James ~ FE¥t k4 100 1,281 3,021 12 4,414
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn HEMEE (RZF—F
(appointed on 7 June 2011) NAtBEZT) 70 347 21 6 444
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie HERLE 100 1,346 48 12 1,506
Mr Xiao Yong HEEE (RZZ——FX
(appointed on 7 June 2011) AtBEZHE) 70 199 13 - 282
Mr Rusli Hendrawan Rusli Hendrawan%t £ (%
(resigned on 28 June 2011) —T——% A=A
BHE) 65 1,780 651 - 2,496
Mr Oey Tjie Ho BERNAE (RZE——F
(resigned on 7 June 2011) NACHEHT) 70 197 11 4 382
Mr Chen Zhongfa BRRBLE(RZE——F
(appointed on 9 September WAL BEZT)
2011) 37 - - - 37
Mr Yau Wing Yiu BxBEE (R-T——F
(appointed on 6 July 2011) T ANBEZRT) 58 - - - 58
Mr Zhang Feng REZE (R_B——4RX
(appointed on 7 June 2011) At BEZI) 68 - - - 68
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming REIREE (RZS——F
(resigned on 28 June 2011) NAZTAREMA) 83 - - - 83
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry  SBHWREL & (R-T——%
(resigned on 9 September NANBEHE)
2011) 137 - - - 137
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin ARELEE (RZT——F&
(resigned on 13 July 2011) +A+=HET) 106 - - - 106
The remuneration of every Director for the year Hz ¥+ -_A=+—H1t

ended 31 December 2010 is set out below:

FESESFZHMEIEDT

Employer’s

contribution

Other  to the MPF
Name of Director Fees Salary benefits Scheme Total

BEEE
A e M EMEN EFHX @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THT THT TET
Mr Rusli Hendrawan Rusli Hendrawan%t 4 100 3,103 83 - 3,286
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James THREE 100 1,498 2,802 12 4,412
Mr Oey Tiie Ho BEEMEAE 100 767 11 12 890
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie WERLE 100 1,346 33 12 1,491
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming REIALE 168 - - - 168
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry IMETE 198 - - - 198
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin IAELE 198 - - - 198
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15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
- DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Other benefits include leave pay, housing
allowances and termination benefits.

During the year, no director has waived any
emoluments (2010: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group include three (2010: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining two (2010: two)
individuals during the year are as follows:

15

ERRAAZ-EERGERE
BARZH& (&)

(a) EFEH& (&)

RERN MEEEHERSTZEM
e (—F—FF &)

(b) EBEEFHAL

AEEZhEBEHMALE
R=%2(ZF-2F . =Z8)&F
B REZHMEER EXZT
Z DM RBR - FAEN T &
TRE(ZZE-TF WA A
TZMEmT:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
Basic salaries, housing EXgFe BFEREM EM
allowances, other allowances B84 & B ¥ F 2
and benefits-in-kind 1,658 2,182
Contributions to the MPF BB FTEIH R
Scheme 43 48
1,701 2,230
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e EELLT

Number of individuals

A8
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Emolument bands B < &5 &
HK$500,000 - 500,0007% T —
HK$999,999 999,9997% JT 1 -
HK$1,000,000 - 1,000,000/ 7T —
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/% 7T 1 2
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16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 ME - BERMME
Furniture,
office
equipment
Land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total
BE-RRE
THREF MEEE HERES SERAE @&

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT ThT TAT

At 1 January 2010 RZE-LFE-H—H
Cost or valuation PR B 79,360 26,439 56,966 51,565 214,330
Accumulated depreciation ZEME - (3,700) (22,633) (35,289) (61,631)
Net book amount FEFE 79,360 22,730 34,333 16,276 152,699
Year ended 31 December 2010 Hz-Z2-ZF
+-A=+-H
L5E
Opening net book amount HBREFE 79,360 22,730 34,333 16,276 152,699
Additions NE - 37 719 6,938 7,694
Disposals HE - - @ (1,100) (1,102)
Depreciation e (7,173) (1,903) (5,879) (6,646) (21,601)
Revaluation surplus EffRHK 7,063 - - - 7,063
Exchange differences EXER 526 - 131 496 1,153
Impairment WE (5,045) - (235) (68) (5,348)
Closing net book amount BAERFE 74,731 20,864 29,067 15,896 140,558
At 31 December 2010 RZT—%F
f:HE+—H
Cost or valuation RS fE (B 74,731 26,476 57,814 53,156 212,177
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERRA
impairment - (5,612) (28,747 (37,260) (71,619)
Net book amount FEFE 74,731 20,864 29,067 15,896 140,558
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16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

16 MK -WER&ME (&)

Furniture,
office
equipment
Land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total
BR-BAZE
THRET HEXE HBEREE REBERAE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TH TR T# THRL
Year ended 31 December 2011 EEI a3
T-A=+-8
LEE
Opening net book amount BOEmFE 74,731 20,864 29,067 15,896 140,558
Additions hE - 1,316 1,250 82 2,648
Disposals e (8,732) - - (2,301) (11,033)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) WENB AT
(Mi7E34) - (871) (4,294) - (5,165)
Depreciation hE (7,411) (1,283) (6,182) (6,227) (21,103)
Revaluation surplus EHEH 17,700 - - - 17,700
Exchange differences EREE 1,318 1,003 1,228 834 4,383
Impairment AL - - (4,464) - (4,464)
Closing net book amount HREEEE 77,606 21,029 16,605 8,284 123,524
At 31 December 2011 R_B——%
T-A=+-8
Cost or valuation KA E 77,606 27,781 45,373 44,010 194,770
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment - (6,752) (28,768) (35,726) (71,246)
Net book amount EmFE 77,606 21,029 16,605 8,284 123,524

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at
31 December 2011. Valuations were made with
reference to sales comparison approach or depreciated
replacement cost approach. The valuations were
carried out by:

()  Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an
independent qualified surveyor for the building held
in Mainland China; and

(i)  KJPP Susan Widjojo & Partners, an independent
qualified surveyor for the land and buildings held in
Indonesia.

The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred
income taxes was credited to fixed assets revaluation
reserve in shareholders’ equity.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZERERAE
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16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation of HK$6,764,000 (2010: HK$7,018,000)
has been expensed to cost of goods sold,
HK$1,323,000 (2010: HK$1,255,000) has been
expensed to selling expenses; and HK$13,016,000
(2010: HK$13,328,000) has been expensed to

16 MR -BWER&MW (])

WEEDARNBEEKR XX H
6,764,000 T (=T — & F:
7,018,000 7t) MIEEMRA I X
51,323,000 L (T —Z 4
1,255,000 70) M R 1TTHA X X

administrative expenses. $513,016,0008 T (Z T —F F:

13,328,000/ 7T ) °

If land and buildings were stated on the historical cost fisd = 3o R A8 F TH IR R L B AR 51 BR -

basis, the amounts would be as follows: HEaxEUOT:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Cost DN 184,360 261,039
Accumulated depreciation RETTE (146,618) (200,203)
Net book amount BREFE 37,742 60,836

TR EERZ=-_ZTE——F+=AH
=+ —HBZEAASEES AT

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December
2011 of the above assets is as follows:

Furniture,
office
equipment
Land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total
BR-BAZE
THREF HEXE BEREE  RERRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEx T TER T
At cost BRA - 27,781 45,373 44,010 117,164
At 2011 valuation “T—EfiE 77,606 - - - 71,606
77,606 27,781 45,373 44,010 194,770
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16 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 MR -BEREH (&)
(Continued)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December TMEER_-_FT-—FTF+H
2010 of the above assets is as follows: =t —BZEAFHEITAT:
Furniture,
office
equipment
Land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles Total
FRIRE NS
THRET HEEE BEREE  RERAE @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
B T AT Tin TER

At cost BEK - 26,476 57,814 53,156 137,446
At 2010 valuation BZE-TEfE 74,731 - - - 74,731
74,731 26,476 57,814 53,156 212,177
Net book value of land and buildings is analysed as THREFIEREFESTAT
follows:
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBAINEE -
- Leases of between —HAOFHN F10E50F
10 to 50 years 54,500 47,577
— Leases of less than 10 years —THAFH D 0F 23,106 27,154
77,606 74,731
17 LAND USE RIGHTS 17 TiEHE
The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid AEBEZ LHERERREBENLE
operating lease payments and their net book values are MERE HEmMFES AT :
analysed as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
In Mainland China held on: KA KEREE :
- Leases of between —HAHFHN F10E50F
10 to 50 years 15,725 15,282

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited {EEZERERAE




17 LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)

18

19

Notes to the Financial Statements 81 %% 3§ 3% [fi 5%

17 T HfERE (48)

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Balance as at 1 January R—A—BZ&# 15,282 11,147
Additions NE - 4,441
Amortisation of prepaid operating — # §5 78 {1 & & fH & A

lease payments (342) (306)
Exchange differences MEH =5 785 -
Balance as at 31 December R+ A=+—Hz2&% 15,725 15,282

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 MIBARIZIRE

Company

¥ NUNE]
2011 2010
—B-——-F  -T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost, unlisted shares AR - 3E BT R 165,938 165,938
Provision for impairment loss VERIEN SRR (73,884) (39,718)
92,054 126,220

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to

the financial statements.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

FTEMBRA R ZFMEREH NI
R 5E36 °

19 REBEQRZED

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FET FET

Beginning of the year F 1) 39,880 40,212
Share of profit/(loss) SMERA S (BE) 184 (332)
Exchange differences IE R =% 1,982 -
End of the year F 4R 42,046 39,880
Amount due from an associate RN D 3,000 3,000
45,046 42,880

Disposal & (45,046) -
- 42,880

2011 £E |~  Annual Report 2011

111



Notes to the Financial Statements B #& ¥} 3% M &%

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20 MARERFARBIRZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BEAnBEFABERZEHEER
include the following: BET&IE:
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Listed equity securities ETRAE
— securities listed —EAH‘Q‘*"Fﬁ
on the Stock Exchange EmzE - 6,180
Derivatives TTETER
— leveraged foreign forward — @R EHINES L
exchange contracts 26 -
26 6,180
The fair values of all listed equity securities were based B EMBRABSH 2 AABEE A
on their current bid prices in an active market. All the ZEHRRRNERMSCHRERE
listed equity securities were disposed during the year. /’E CIELTRAZFFERFAL
&=,

The above assets are denominated in the following

FiEENATIE®SE

currencies:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHETT
Hong Kong dollar BT - 6,180
United States dollar I 26 -
26 6,180
21 AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 21 BBEATIRR
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the amounts due RZE——FR_FT—ZFTF+_A

from subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free.
Repayment will not be required within the next twelve

months.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited {EEZERERAE

=B MEBARRSAEER
Res ABARKE+ AR
g



22

23

Notes to the Financial Statements 81 %% 3§ 3% [fi 5%

INVENTORIES 22 &8
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Raw materials R A 2,778 32,146
Work in progress F 2K 9,580 59,825
Finished goods A in 7,850 14,202
20,208 106,173

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in cost of goods sold amounted
to approximately HK$319,617,000 (2010:
HK$395,536,000).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

MRAABRY R AEERAZES
B 7R 49 /319,617,000 7T ( ZF —
Z 4 : 395,536,000/ 7T ) °

23 WHRHEMEKREA

Group Company
rEH b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-FTF ZB——F —ZT-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT FET FAET
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 32,542 95,765 - -
Prepayments, deposits FEFIE 24 & E
and other receivables ftt & UK 5K I8 10,307 29,448 837 601
42,849 125,213 837 601

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables approximate their fair values.

B 5 RWGRIR 1R e MR
R EmEEEQERES-
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23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The majority of the Group’s sales to customers are on
open account basis, with credit terms ranging from 30
to 45 days. The remaining sales are on letter of credit at
sight to 90 days. The ageing of trade receivables is as
follows:

23

RoaRHMEWKZRE (&)

AEBABHBEE TR ZNEY
R AR ET EE BN T30E
458 2 T E KA BN EI £90H
ERRMAR-E 5 EWRIE 2 RER
NN

Group

rEE
2011 2010
2% —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30H A 30,032 66,467
31-60 days 31-60H 2,264 26,260
61-90 days 61-90H 73 2,043
Over 90 days HiE0H 173 995
32,542 95,765

As at 31 December 2011, the trade receivables from
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 86%
(2010: 73%) of the total trade receivables. The Group’s
approach to managing credit risk is disclosed in Note 3.

The ageing of trade receivables past due but not
considered to be impaired is shown below. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default.

RZF——F+ZA=+—H XK
SEAAREFZE S BWFIAN
B 5 RBRIARESe% (—F —F
F:73%) AKEEERERERRLZ
AN G

EAERRASERELE SRR
FORMRER AT o B B T 30 & 4T 5
R BILEF AR -

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Within 30 days 30HIA 2,384 8,105
31-60 days 31-60H 74 310
61-90 days 61-90H 11 759
Over 90 days H#E0H 67 10
2,536 9,184

At 31 December 2011, there were no provisions for
impairment of trade receivables (2010: Nil).

EEZRERAH

R-FB——F+-A=+—-H0 %
B8 5 e WK IR F R E B A
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23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The other classes within trade and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying amount of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

23 WHRHAMEIZRE (&)

.55 1% K A 8 OB P9 2 R B
THEDREEE:

REFERzZESEERR S L
FHMEEFEZEEE A&E
I 458 55 A (T A 3 qn VR

BZRYWHIAZREEIIATIE
®olE

Group

REE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAET
Hong Kong dollar BT - 1,304
Renminbi AR 17,043 27,928
United States dollar ETT 15,499 66,533
32,542 95,765

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

Be MEA R IE 2 BREE T A
TNIEESIE

Group Company
- VNG|

2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--5 —T-TF ZB--Ff C"IZT-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TEL TER BT
Hong Kong dollar BT 2,646 3,809 837 601
Indonesian Rupiah e 6,444 4,943 - -
Renminbi AR 407 4,302 - -
South African Rand EES ks - 2,569 - -
Others Hi - 1,063 - -
9,497 16,686 837 601
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24 BANK DEPOSITS

As of 31 December 2011, the effective interest rate of
the bank deposits is 0.5% (2010: 0.89%) per annum.
These deposits have maturities of 81 days (2010:
104 to 172 days). These bank deposits are pledged
as securities for bank borrowings amounting to
HK$10,241,000 (2010: HK$27,414,000) (Note 27).

The carrying amount of the bank deposit is denominated
in United States dollar.

24

HTER
W-—ZE——F+=-A=+—H 4
THERZERFEMNERSLE (ZF
—ZF:0.89F)  WWEFHENE
HAES1H (ZZE—ZF:1042172
) WERITHERIDBERTE
710,241,000 L (2 —Z & :
27,414,000 7t) (Bi5E27) 2K
o

RITHFERZEEENLETIE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 BERREFEEHRHE
Group Company
X558 b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--§ -Z-%Ff CZB--§f —T-T%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET TER FHET
Cash at bank and in hand BOLFERS 96,248 61,130 467 523
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 15,500 13,424 - -
111,748 74,554 467 523
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits HHRTERZEBRERNE K06
is 0.6% (2010: 0.4% to 9%) per annum where the B(ZZT—ZTF:04EF9E) H
deposits have maturities of 46 days (2010: 3 days to 17 FEIE A46H (ZE—ZF : 35817
days). H) o
The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents RehkBE2FEBEE Z2EEEBETDIN
are denominated in the following currencies: T3 EEIE:
Group Company
X558 b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--§ -Z-%§ CZB--§ —T-TF%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET TER FHET
Hong Kong dollar BT 9,486 10,288 467 523
Indonesian rupiah HNEE 4,086 12,533 - -
Renminbi AR 13,979 8,638 - -
United States dollar ey 83,918 42,893 - -
Others Hith 279 202 - -
111,748 74,554 467 523

EEZRERAH
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26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27

As at 31 December 2010, derivative financial
instruments comprise a leveraged foreign forward
exchange contract.

The Group relies on valuations from the counterparty
financial institutions to determine the fair value of the
leveraged foreign forward exchange contract, which in
turn is based on the forward foreign exchange rate at
the balance sheet date.

26 fTE€mMIT R
R-ZE—ZF+_-_A=+—H 97
Hem T AREERENRBINES
#y e

AEBERBEXZUF BB G
BEAEETEEANEHIINESDZA
RE FRAGEDEAREERZ
B HE R QA

BANK BORROWINGS 27 MITER
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Trust receipts loans SRR E R 4,431 73,279
Portion of bank loans due for R—FREEBEEZ
repayment within one year IRITERE S 30,723 59,452
Portion of bank loans due for R—FRIBEEHE
repayment after one year which BREFEX 2
contain a repayment on demand RITERE D
clause - 11,833
Total borrowings BER 35,154 144,564
At 31 December, interest-bearing bank loans and trust R+—A=+—8" BH8EE 25
receipt loans are due for repayment as follows: BIRITERLETREERDO T
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FAT
Trust receipts loans EEWIBEER 4,431 73,279
Portion of bank loans due for R—FRNEEER ZRTT
repayment within one year BHEn 30,723 59,452
35,154 132,731
Bank loans due for repayment R—FREEEE ZRTT
after one year (Note 1): B (MEET) -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FHEMFEA - 9,000
After 2 years but within 5 years MFRERFAN - 2,833
Total borrowings BER 35,154 144,564

Note 1: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of

any repayment on demand clause.

PEEE1 N BORTIRIR BRI T #ETRA]
ERAHHE TEFAEMER

BREGEX 2w E-
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27 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December, the bank loans and trust receipts
loans are secured as follows:

27

MITHR® (&)
Rt-A=+—H RITERKE
FERBERZERFBOT

2011 2010

—F——F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Bank loans — secured IRITER—BEA 30,723 27,414
Bank loans — unsecured IRITER—EEH - 43,871
Trust receipts loans — unsecured =R B R — E R 4,431 73,279
Total borrowings BE R 35,154 144,564

As at 31 December 2011, bank borrowings amounting
to HK$10,241,000 and HK$20,482,000 are secured
by the bank deposits of HK$11,718,000 (Note 24) and
land use rights located at Heshan, Mainland China
of HK$15,725,000, respectively. As at 31 December
2010, bank borrowings amounting to HK$27,414,000
were secured by the bank deposits of the Group (Note
24).

The exposures of the Group’s borrowings to interest
rate changes and the contractual repricing dates as of
the balance sheet are as follows:

R—ZZEE——F+ = A=+ —
B R{TE 10,241,000/ 7T &
20,482,000/ 7T 7 B AR £ B SR 1T
17 511,718,000/ 7t (M 5524) &
AL A AR B K B85 1L T 2 - Hb 55 AR A
15,725,000 TIERBEF -R =&
—ZTF+-_A=+—H RITEX
27,414,000 T Y AR EE R 1T1F
(K EE24) 1E A

NEER AEBEREFERD
REHBEL B BmAS 2 Bk
T

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

6 months or less 61& A AT 35,154 144,564

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

RITERZREETIA TGRS
&

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT - 38,876
Renminbi AR 30,723 27,414
United States dollar == 4,431 78,274
Total borrowings e 35,154 144,564
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BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.6%
to 6.4% per annum for Renminbi denominated loans
(2010: 4.8% to 5.8% per annum). As at 31 December
2010, the bank loans bear interest rates ranging from
1.8% to 5.5% per annum for United States dollar
denominated loans and 1.8% to 2.0% per annum for
Hong Kong dollar denominated loans.

The trust receipts loans bear interest at rates ranging
from 2.8% to 3.6% per annum for United States dollar
denominated loans (2010: 1.8% to 2.3% per annum).
As at 31 December 2010, the trust receipt loans bear
interest rates ranging from 1.8% to 2.3% per annum for
Hong Kong dollar denominated loans.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate
their fair values as the effect of discounting is not
significant.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

27

28

MITH® ()

ROTERFTE ARBSEZER
BREFNENTA46EE64E (ZF—
TE A8ERL8E )T E - R _T
—EF+-_A=+—H WETE
BEZ2EREBFEMENT1.8EE55
Bt B MBI EZERAIE
FRENF18EE2.0EE -

EAREERFE UETHEZ
BRIRENENF28EE3.6E (=
T—TF 1 8EZE23E):TE R
—E-EEFE+-A=+—H UHB
TTETEZERRIEERAIRF A =X
NTF18EE23EE -

RITERRFREZEIAN HERK
EEEEQAERE-

iE E PR3 1R
EBETEARITENEEBRIEE
EEEHHRBAGERE BELH
SRP RE— BB - A 7] i8R
EFBHEENRAGEEN - PTIKHE
ZEREIAT

2011 2010

—E2——fF —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Deferred income tax assets BEIEFTSREE - 5,010
Deferred income tax liabilities REFGHEE (15,865) (10,943)
(15,865) (5,933)
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28

The net movements on the deferred income tax
account are as follows:

@ﬁm%m(%)
EIEFSHARE 2 SEFREMT :

2011 2010

2% —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Balance as at 1 January qu\ RA—R2z &% (5,933) (5,225)
Deferred income tax (debited)/ RUAHHRE (3B) 5 A
credited to income statement ZIBEEFTS L (MEEE10)

(Note 10) (3,035) 1,190
Deferred income tax charged R BR 2 EIEFT1F R

to equity (7,031) (2,049)

Exchange differences MEHZRE 134 151

Balance as at 31 December RTZA=+—HZ&&% (15,865) (5,933)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forwards to the extent that realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of HK$37,383,000 (2010: HK$28,688,000)
in respect of losses amounting to HK$169,926,000
(2010: HK$135,197,000) that can be carried forward
against future taxable income. Cumulative tax losses of
HK$59,987,000 (2010: HK$64,709,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely while tax losses of HK$109,939,000
(2010: HK$70,488,000) will expire in five years.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZERERAE

EIEFSHEEEEN BB ZHE
F) 55 A B2 35 1B R 2R B AR B 1) &
B REEREEREBRR -I&
& 3 4 7 2% 12169,926,0005% 7T
—E—T 4 :135,197,000/8 7T ) 2
518 2 IR E AT 15 B & EE37,383,000
B (ZF—Z 4 28,688,000/
JC) BRI AAE AR B &R
A - 25518 E5 859,987,000
BT (ZZE—FF :64,709,000
BRI ERPLEE M EEIE
109,939,000 T (—Z T — T4 :
70,488,000/ 7T ) iR A FEREH] -
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same

28 RIEEFRIR (#8)

FRAZEEHREREERBESE
(REIHR —RIBE E R 2 A ERAT)

taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: N
Deferred income tax assets EEFRRIREE
Provision
for post-
employment
benefits
BEHR
&&=z
BERRE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2010 R—ZFE—ZFTF—H—H 3,820
Credited to income statement RWAFHRERFFTA 1,003
Exchange differences EH =58 187
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+=_A=+—H 5,010
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——F—H—H 5,010
Debited to income statement PRI AR R B (5,138)
Exchange differences M X Z5E 128
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+_-_A=+—H -
Deferred income tax liabilities REFRBIRAR
Withholding
tax for
Fair value Accelerated  undistributed
gains of land tax retained
and buildings  depreciation earnings Total
KK
THREFZ REBEAZ
MRERE ERBERE BHHE M@
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TER TER
Balance as at 1 January 2010 R=-F—FF—A—H2&H 6,126 1,192 1727 9,045
Credited to income statement  RIKABRZH 5T A - (187) - (187)
Charged to equity i el 2,049 - - 2,049
Exchange differences R ERE - 36 - 36
At 31 December 2010 ZE-TFTZA=T-H 8,175 1,041 1,727 10,943
Balance as at 1 January 2011 R-Z——F—F—Hz& 8,175 1,041 1,727 10,943
Credited to income statement  RUTARE S A - (376) (1,727) (2,109)
Charged to equity RERMB 7,031 - - 7,031
Exchange differences EHESD - (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2011 W-E-——F+-RA=1+—H 15,206 659 - 15,865
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29 BHEHMEFFRER
Group Company
X %58 YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
3 —T-TF —E--F —Z-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET TERT AT
Trade payables BEHEMNRE 16,549 79,874 - -
Other payables and accruals ~ Eft BN FRIERETEH 17,218 66,943 1,012 998
33,767 146,817 1,012 998
The ageing of the trade payables, based on invoice ESREMNRIBREZ A Z R0
date, was as follows: T
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—_E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Within 30 days 30HIA 5,052 51,450
31-60 days 31-60H 5,027 19,251
61-90 days 61-90H 3,669 6,210
Over 90 days HiEmo0H 2,801 2,963
16,549 79,874
Trade payables are denominated in the following B REMNRIBTIATYEMEYE :
currencies:
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 936 27,987
Indonesian Rupiah He’& - 2,347
Renminbi AR 12,986 29,838
United States dollar == 2,627 19,603
Others EHAh - 99
16,549 79,874
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29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 BHRHEMEBAARE ()
(Continued)
Other payables and accruals are denominated in the HMENRIERETERTIA T
following currencies: BHDIE:
Group Company
X558 YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®F-—-% "ZT-%F ZB--F C-T-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET THER TAET
Hong Kong dollar BT 2,429 11,832 1,012 998
Indonesian Rupiah & 886 26,476 - -
Renminbi ARE 13,903 26,829 - -
South African Rand HEER - 1,806 - -
17,218 66,943 1,012 998

30

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate their fair values due to their short term
nature.

B 5 N H e 30R F & AT
B HEKRAERAERE-

SHARE CAPITAL 30 B&&
2011 2011 2010 2010
“E--§ CZB--% C-—T-TF C"T-TF
Number of Ordinary Number of Ordinary
Shares shares Shares shares
ROEA EER B g8 Lk
(thousands) HK$’000 (thousands) HK$'000
(FR) TERT (&) TET
At 1 January n—H—H 371,874 37,187 371,874 37,187
Issue of shares BT 74,300 7,430 - -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 446,174 44,617 371,874 37,187

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is
2,000,000,000 (2010: 2,000,000,000) shares with a par
value of HK$0.10 per share (2010: HK$0.10 per share).

On 25 July 2011, the Board of Directors of the
Company passed a resolution to approve the allotment
and issue of 74,300,000 ordinary shares for a private
placement to six independent third parties. On 27 July
2011, the Company completed the private placement
and issued an aggregate of 74,300,000 ordinary shares
at a price of HK$ 0.65 per share.

AT T B4R EA2,000,000,000%

—Z —Z 4 :2,000,000,0000 )

BREMBE10BT (ZF—FTF:
P {E0. 10/ 7T) °

RZEBE——F+A-+HB AR
REECRBE —ERABE AR
2 K ¥ 1774,300,0000% & i@ A% - LA
HAAREFAABBILE=ZF -1
—E——Ft+tA=-+tH XRQF
TR FLA B E - W R & A%0.65/%8 T
2 B1& 3174 ££74,300,0000% & &
% o
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31 OTHER RESERVES 31 HfthfiE

Exchange  Fixed assets

Share translation revaluation Merger
premium reserve reserve reserve (i) Total
EEEE

RAEE ERfE EfifkfE  AOHREE @t

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FERT TET FET

Balance as at 1 January 2010 RZZE-S5-A—BzHH 43,522 (31,161) 43,372 (200) 55,533
Exchange differences arising on the BREEINEBAR R E AT
translation of the financial statements of B BRREEZEHZH

overseas subsidiaries and associates - 3,631 - - 3,531

Fair value changes, net of deferred tax AR EEH B ELHE - - 4,888 - 4,888

At 31 December 2010 R-E-F5+-A=+-8 43,522 (27,630) 48,260 (200) 63,952

Balance s at 1 January 2011 RoE——%5—F—-B2&8 43,522 (27,630) 48,260 (200) 63,952
Exchange differences arising on the REBNHBAR R E AT
translation of the financial statements of B BHREL 2 EXZH

overseas subsidiaries and associates - 2,707 - - 2,707

Fair value changes, net of deferred tax AR EEE - HBETHE - - 10,515 - 10,515

Issue of shares BITR MG 40,865 - - - 40,865

Reserves transferred upon disposal of land (L& T3 R B FHERKEE

and building, net of tax MBRHE - - (14,864) - (14,864)
Reserves released upon disposal of HERBENFALHBRAZ

interests in associates and subsidiaries BRBRRREE - (7,508) - - (7,508)

At 31 December 2011 RoE-—f+-F=+-8 84,387 (32,431) 43,911 (200) 95,667

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited {EEZERERAE
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31 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

31 HtheEiE (#§)

Company
¥ NN
Share Contributed
premium surplus (ii) Total
R RE SRR et
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FA&7T FET FET
At 1 January 2010 RZE—EF—H—H 43,522 147,694 191,216
At 31 December 2010 RZE—FTF+=H
=+—H 43,522 147,694 191,216
At 1 January 2011 Rn-—ZE——F—H—H 43,522 147,694 191,216
Issue of shares BTG 40,865 - 40,865
At 31 December 2011 R_ZE——F+=A1
=+—H 84,387 147,694 232,081
Notes: B -
()  The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference (i) AEBZAEHREHEIEFBEA AN

between the nominal value of the shares of a subsidiary
acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor.

(if) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the
subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

(i

BARRD 2 HEEARR R BERH
TR 2 ME 2 Z5 -

KRR ZMABRBRTIEFRBEALN S
RAIZHFEARRESHARAMBIER
MBI 2 EEZ Z/E -
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32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH

FLOW STATEMENT

32 HFEReNERME

Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net cash BRATEMATERESEEEL (AT
generated from/(used in) operations is as follows: A)zReFE2EERAT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Loss before income tax BRATEHAIEE (46,338) (59,803)
Depreciation of properties, M- WEREEBITE
plant and equipment 21,103 21,601
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME BERREZ
properties, plant and equipment BE () 2,680 (345)
Impairment of properties, Y% BB NEERE
plant and equipment 4,464 5,348
Amortisation of land use rights {50 A A 4 8 342 306
Share of (profit)/loss of associates D {EEE& A7) CEF)
BB (184) 332
Gain on disposal of interest HERBE NG 2R
in associates (Note 33) Wz (FYEE33) (3,452) -
Gain on disposal of interest HERMBAR 2=
in subsidiaries (Note 34) Wz (MI5E34) (202) -
Dividend income on listed ERAZESF ZREWA
equity securities - (48)
Finance income BE WA (619) (409)
Finance costs B & R A 3,621 2,292
(18,585) (30,726)
Changes in working capital: LBEESED:
Inventories FE 85,236 (5,398)
Trade and other receivables H 5 & H b fE W FKIB 74,784 (14,066)
Trade and other payables 5 R EH A e IR (103,875) 5,132
Financial assets at fair value BARER AEBD EEZ
through profit or loss EREE 6,180 12,207
Derivative financial instruments THEERTA (173) 147
Net cash generated wEEE/ (FTA)
from/(used in) operations e FEE 43,567 (32,704)

EEZRERAH
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33 DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATES 33

During the year, the Group entered into share purchase
agreements: — (a) to dispose of its 40% interest in
ShanDong WeiQiao HengFu Textile Limited to an
independent third party for a cash consideration of
HK$38,363,000; and (b) to dispose of its 20% interest
in Fortune Champ Group Limited, which holds 55%
interest in Yi Feng Petrochemical Limited, to an
independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000.

Details in respect of the above disposals are as follows:

HERELF
FRAEEFTLERBZE: (@P—
HBUE=ZHFHREERILURERE
B A BR AR Z240%HE 5
IR & K & 538,363,000 7T : X (b)
M—EZBIYFE=FHEERKEE
BERRAA (FHERFALLEESR
RN FI55% M m ) 220%#m - IR
R 1B 3,000,000/ It °

ERLREEEEZHBOT:

2011
—F——F
HK$’000
FER
Investment in associate disposed of FTHERBERRIZIRE 45,046
Release of exchange reserve HE S QAR IRE N RE
upon disposal of an associate (7,135)
37,911
Gain on the disposal & W 3,452
41,363
Consideration: RE:
Satisfied by: AR :
— Cash —Be 41,363
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash BLEHL AR RENIBESE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of BEEERAFEITOT:
associates are as follows:
— Cash consideration - BeRE 41,363
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FHELEBE R CHERRESE
in respect of the disposal of associates BEIEB RAFE 41,363

2011 £E |~  Annual Report 2011

127



128

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& #§ 3% [ 5T

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZRER

34 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 34 HEMHRE LT
During the year, the Group disposed of its FR-AEEHEETIWBEAR
subsidiaries as follows: — (a) Hipmode Investment QR —BBILE=HHEHB QA
Limited (“Hipmode Investment”), a subsidiary, to an HEREFRAR ([HERE]) -
independent third party at a cash consideration of {4 KRB A9,250,0005 7T 5 (b)[AIZ
HK$9,250,000; (b) Queentime International Limited % B i B 2 &) Cityshine Investments
(“Queentime”), a subsidiary, to the shareholder of the Limited ([ Cityshine | ) > & &R 2
minority shareholder of Cityshine Investments Limited BREHEHNBRARERERERA
(“Cityshine”), a subsidiary of the Group at an aggregate Al ([&%F])  #HKER2,605,000
consideration of HK$ 2,605,000, which was settled by BT LR EREBIETR#R
a cash consideration of HK$1 and waiver of a loan due CityshinefE ff Cityshine L Bl R &
by Cityshine to the minority shareholder of Cityshine 322,605,000/ 7T 75 A Z AT 5 K (c)F)
amounting to HK$2,605,000; and (c) Shinning Century MEBARBEBEAER AR ([RBE] -
Limited (“Shinning Century”), a 70% owned subsidiary, NEBHEBH70%EZ) 230%IE
to the 30% non-controlling interest of the disposed THIM R EHEZ AR BARER
company at an aggregate consideration of HK$ 3,382,000/ 7L LIRS RE1E T
3,382,000, which was settled by a cash consideration REFHRRRBEBARAINEA
of HK$1 and waiver by the purchaser of an amount due AIRIBZ T AZT
from a subsidiary of the Company to Shinning Century.
Details in respect of the disposals of these subsidiaries BHFTANEEZSENBLARIZFFE
during the year are as follows: N
2011
—E2——fF
HK$’000
FERT
Net liabilities disposed of HEZFEaE
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) —ME - WE REE (HiE16) 5,165
— Inventory —1F8 86
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 REAMEWKFIE 7,588
— Cash and cash equivalents -RekBFEFEIEE 6,449
— Amount due to subsidiaries of the Company — &t K2 & i B A 7l 7018 — /F 58
— net (19,690)
— Trade and other payables — B 5 K HMENFRIEB (6,363)
— Non-controlling interests —JESE SIS (899)
(7,664)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of & M &~ 7] b f7 & [ 5 15
subsidiaries (373)
Waiver by the subsidiaries of the Company for A&ARQ A B AR R HFITIRE &
amounts due by Hipmode Investment and BREER ZFRIA
Queentime 23,072
Gain on the disposal & s 202
15,237
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34 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35

34 HEMBLAT ()

2011
—E——F
HK$’000
FExT
Consideration: MR
Satisfied by: FRNDIEE
- Cash -R& 9,250
— Waiver by the purchaser of an amount due — B 7 #A % E UL AR 2 &) i B A A
from a subsidiary of the Company KIA 3,382
— Waiver of a loan due to the minority —NEENARRRINER R
shareholder of a subsidiary LERRCER
of the Company 2,605
15,237
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash BEHENBRARZEESMNEESSE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of BEEERAFEITAT:
subsidiaries is as follows:
— Cash consideration —-ReERE 9,250
— Cash disposed of —FHERS (6,449)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FRALENBARIZRERAESE
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries BEIEE RAFE 2,801
COMMITMENTS 35 #&Kif
Commitments under operating leases BEHERIE

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments for land and buildings under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

AREBRBENAIHGHEEHEMA
RAREH T MBF I 2 RIEHE
THBEMT

2011 2010

—F——F —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FERT FAT

Not later than one year —F R 3,434 8,035
Later than one year and —FRBENERASF

not later than five years 3,923 23,886

Later than five years hF%& 251 8,425

7,608 40,346
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36 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

36 ELTF

ARRR—ZB——F+_/F=+—

December 2011: BZEEMBARNT:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage
Place of issued share of interest
Company name operation Principal activities capital held
AR FrismEs
NCIESE RELH TEXH ERTRAER BOk
Shares held directly:
EEFERHG:
Topwell Group British Virgin Investment holding 1,000 ordinary 100
Development Ltd. Islands shares of US$1
each
KBRUES REZER 1,000/ & AR E{E 1
ETZEBK
Shares held indirectly:
MEFEER®D:
Carry Wealth Limited Hong Kong Garment trading, 4,000,000 100
marketing and ordinary shares
provision of of HK$1 each
management
services
MHEBRAA £ RRES MHHE 4,000,000 &K
KR & 1R IR HEIETZE
B
Hillwealth International Hong Kong Garment trading and 1 ordinary share of 100
Limited marketing HK$1
BRBIRERAT BB KRB RTHHERE 1REEIBTZE
AR
Mass Wealth Investments Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100
Limited HK$1
HMRREGRAT BB RERR 1REEIBTZE

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZ:BRERAH]
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37

36 MELTF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage
Place of issued share of interest
Company name operation Principal activities capital held
AR FrisiEs
NCIRCE R TEER ERTREER Batk
PT Caterindo Garment Indonesia Manufacture of knit 15,000 ordinary 95
Industri products shares of Rp1
million each
e EEHBRE 15,0000 & IR E &
—AgHlREZ
RGN
BLEERXERAA People’s Manufacture of knit US$10,500,000 100
(Heshan Carry Wealth Republic of products
Garment Limited) China
hEARANE M E ST AR AR 5 10,500,000 7T

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37 REFXRXS

(a) As at 31 December 2011, 236,662,000 shares (a)
(53.04%) of the Company were held by Dragon
Peace Limited, which was ultimately owned by
Mr Li Haifeng, a director of the Company. The
directors consider Dragon Peace Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
to be the Company’s ultimate holding company.

(b) During the year, the Group had the following (b)
transaction with its associate, ShanDong WeiQiao

HengFu Textile Limited:

RZE——F+ZA=+—
H 7~ A 7]236,662,000 1% i
19 (53.04%)H Dragon Peace
Limited 5B AR RIEEFF
MAEERBRBEBLZAR - ESF
& /& Dragon Peace Limited
(REBEXHSTMAL 2
BRAR)BARRZ T

@/NEIK

RER AEEEEBZE QR
IWRRBIEEEH BN RBR A
AIBNATRS:

2011 2010

—F——F —EZF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FHE T FET

Purchases of raw materials BERERME 80 408
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

37 REFRXS (#8)

Key management compensation (c) FEEBAREE
2011 2010
—B2-—-F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET TETT
Salaries and other short-term Bl &2 E Ath 55 HA (& & 12 7
employee benefits 10,082 10,043
Contributions to the MPF RIE®FTEI K
Scheme 40 36
10,122 10,079

At 31 December 2011, the Company had provided
guarantees to certain banks in respect of the
banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$248,000,000 (2010:
HK$471,820,000). The facilities utilised by the
subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 amounted to
HK$4,431,000 (2010: HK$117,150,000).

In June 2011, the Group disposed of its wholly
owned subsidiary, Queentime, to the shareholder
of the minority shareholder of Cityshine, a
subsidiary of the Group at an aggregate
consideration of HK$ 2,605,000 (Note 34).

In December 2011, the Group disposed of its 70%
interest in Shinning Century to the 30% minority
shareholder of the disposed company at an
aggregate consideration of HK$3,382,000 (Note
34).

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited 1EEZ:BRERAH]

(d)

(e)

(f)

R—ZE——F+_A=+—
H ARBEREMBRARZ
R171= B A% #9248,000,000
s (Z & — & F
471,820,000/ T ) @& FR1T
REER - ZEHBRAAR=
TE——F+_-_A=+—HEH
2 {=E% 54,431,000/ 7T
(ZZ—Z 117,150,000/
JL) °

RZEBE——F A AEEM
7~ & B ff |8 2 B Cityshine ) £k
BREZEREHEEZERB A
A& % - R (E B2,605,000/%
7T (BI7E34) ©

RZE—F+ R Xx&HE
MBEB 2 LERE (BEZ
NAEIB0%E R ) HEZ AR Z
70% @ - B E &3,382,000
BT (MI5E34) ©
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2701, 27th Floor, One Kowloon, 1 Wang Yuen Street, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
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